BEFORE THE JEFFERSON COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH

RE: REQUEST FOR HEARING TO
CONTEST THE DENIED RENEWAL OF
OPERATING PERMIT

NO. 4-07-0335-03

Docket No.

H ¥ % ¥

REQUEST FOR HEARING AND EMERGENCY MOTION FOR STAY

Pursuant to Alabama Code §§ 22-3-1, 22-22A-7, 22-28-3 et seq. and the Jefferson County
Board of Health Air Pollution Control Rules and Regulations!, Bluestone Coke, LLC (“Bluestone™)
respectfully requests a hearing before the Jefferson County Board of Health or its designated
Hearing Officer (the “Board™) to contest the August 11, 2021 denial by the Jefferson County
Department of Health (the “Department™) of the pending renewal of Operating Permit No. 4-07-
0335-03 (the “Permit”). If allowed to stand, the Department’s decision will result in the
irrevocable closure of the Bluestone Coke plant and the permanent loss of 125 living-wage
jobs. A copy of the August 11, 2021 denial letter, the contested administrative action, is attached
hereto as Exhibit 1. Bluestone further moves for an emergency stay of the contested permit
application denial pursuant to ADEM r. 335-2-1-.23. There is no dispute that the shutdown of a
coke battery will destroy the battery. As a temporary measure, in the now-absence of an Operating
Permit, Bluestone has placed its batteries in a “hot idle” state at a cost approaching $80,000 each

and every day.’

! Chapter 12 of the Board’s Air Pollution Contrel Rules and Regulations (revised April 19, 2017) addresses the
procedures for the hearing and determination of appeals of administrative actions of the Department by the Board.
Chapter 12 incorporates by reference the “Rules of Procedure for Hearing Appeals of Administrative Actions of the
Alabama Department of Environmental Management.” Accordingly, references in the instant Request and Motion
are to the controlling ADEM rules.

Z“Hot idle” involves ceasing production activities but continuing to keep the coke battery heated by the combustion
of natural gas (rather than coke oven gas generated during normal operations). The cost of purchasing natural gas
averages approximately $40,000 each day. In addition, the cost of lost production is similarly in the neighborhood of



In accordance with ADEM r. 335-2-1-.04(5), Bluestone states as follows:

1. As required by ADEM r. 335-2-1-.04(5)(a), this Request for Hearing (“Request™)
is made on behalf of Bluestone Coke, LLC, 3500 35" Avenue North, Birmingham, Alabama
35207, (205) 516-0348.

2 As required by ADEM r. 335-2-1-.04(5)(b), the administrative action of the
Department being contested is the denial of the renewal Permit application.

3) As required by ADEM r. 335-2-1-.04(5)(c), Bluestone has already been and will
continue to be irreparably injured by the Department’s improper denial of the Permit application.
Bluestone has ceased all production activities in light of the Department’s improper denial of its
Permit application, has placed its coke batteries in a “hot idle” status at a significant cost, and
has temporarily idled its non-essential workforce.

4. As required by ADEM r. 335-2-1-.04(5)(d), the Department made the following

Srrors:

(a) The Department bases its permit denial decision entirely on Bluestone’s alleged
failure “to demonstrate compliance with the Regulations for the past year,” citing
in total a June, 2020 Notice of Violation; a June, 2021 inspection; and, a July,
2021 inspection. A permit denial, however, must be based on the applicant’s
failure to show that each article, machine, equipment or other contrivance, the
use of which may cause the issuance of air contaminants, is so designed
controlled, or equipped with such air pollution control equipment, that it is
expected to operate without emitting or without causing to be emitted air
contaminants in violation of the Board’s regulations. A handful of inspections,
each lasting only a few hours at most, over a period of fourteen or more months
is insufficient to meet the standard required by the regulations. Stated differently,
the violations alleged do not establish an inability to comply. The Department’s
denial decision is thus unreasonable, arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of
discretion, and in error as a matter of [aw.

$40,000 each day. These costs do not capture the impact of the Department’s action on the plant’s 100-plus
employees, the vast majority of whom have temporarily been idled and all of whom will be terminated if the Permit
is not renewed and the plant closes or the damage to Bluestone’s reputation for reliability in the marketplace.

2



(b) Inits August 11, 2021 denial letter, the Department acknowledges a “change in
ownership” of the permitted facility. More completely, Bluestone assumed
ownership and operation of the facility in Summer, 2019. Since that time,
Bluestone has invested more than $40 million in facility upgrades. Bluestone has
coordinated with the Department throughout in a cooperative manner and has
explained that the improvements it has made and continues to make will take time
to be fully effective. The Department’s denial decision fails to correctly
acknowledge the substantial steps Bluestone has made toward improving
compliance, which demonstrate its intent and ability to comply with the Permit
and the regulations. As an example of improved compliance, in December 2020
the baghouse underwent extensive testing and it was determined the emissions
limit was being met at the time. Additionally, recent trends in ratios relating to
offtakes and charging have significantly improved.

(¢) Other than issuing an NOV in 2020, the Department has taken no further
enforcement actions in fourteen months until it filed a lawsuit on August 11, 2021
stmultaneously with the issuance of the denial letter. The Department’s delay is
inconsistent with Bluestone’s purported inability to comply. To the contrary, it
demonstrates the Department’s apparent belief the facility was making progress.

(d) The June and July, 2021 inspections have not resulted in the issuance of Notices
of Violation, Thus, there has been no administrative action as a result of those
inspections which could be contested by Bluestone. The Department’s reliance
on those inspections in support of its Permit denial decision deprives Bluestone
of its administrative rights under the Board’s regulations and is premature.

{e) The Department’s Permit denial decision is arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of
discretion, and in error as a matter of law because the Department did not comply
with any and all public participation requirements required by the Board’s
regulations.

(f) Bluestone reserves the right to amend and supplement the grounds for this
Request for Hearing.

a1 As required by ADEM r. 335-2-1-.04(5)e), Bluestone requests the Board to
disapprove the Department’s denial of the renewal Permit application.
6. As required by ADEM r. 335-2-1-.04(5)(f), Bluestone states that it is represented

by the undersigned attorneys, whose names, mailing addresses and telephone numbers are set

out below.



. In accordance with ADEM r. 335-335-2-1-.23, Bluestone further seeks an
emergency stay of the Department’s improper permit denial. As noted above, Bluestone and its
employees are currently harmed by the Department’s action while it maintains its coke batteries
in “hot idle.” Beyond the immediate, significant and unnecessary costs detailed above, critically
Bluestone cannot maintain a “hot idle” status indefinitely and, in a matter of days, will be forced
to shut down its coke batteries. Once the batteries are allowed to cool off, they will crack due to
changes in temperature. In sum, in the absence of stay, the plant will shut down and not reopen.
Bluestone seeks a hearing of its motion to stay at the earliest possible time. Any harm to the
Department as a result of a stay of limited duration pales in comparison to the irreparable harm

of permanent facility closure and the loss of 125 jobs.

Respectfully

J. Alan Truitt (TR}JOOQ)

Kazmarek Mowrey Cloud Laseter LLP
The Forbes Building

1914 4™ Avenue North

Birmingham, AL 35203

Phone: (205) 777-7972

Email: atruitt@kmcllaw.com

Attorneys for Bluestone Coke, LLP



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that I have served a copy of this Hearing Request and Emergency Motion for Stay
upon the Board and its counsel either via email or by overnight mail at the addresses below. Done
this 12 day of August, 2021.

Health Officer

Jefferson County Board of Health
1400 Sixth Avenue South
Birmingham, AL 35233

Wade C, Merritt

David S. Maxey
WMerritt@Spain-Gillon.com
DMaxey@Spain-Gillon.com
Spain & Gillon, LLC

505 20" Street North

Suite 1200

Birmingham, AL 35203

Kazmarek Mowrey Cloud Laseter LLP
The Forbes Building

1914 4" Avenue North

Birmingham, AL 35203

Phone: (205) 777-7972

Email: atruitt@kmcllaw.com

Z
JAlan Truitt (TR;]})O’:)) =
C

Attorney for Bluestone Coke, LLP
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JEFFERSON COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

1400 6th Avenue South | Birmingham, AL 35233 (205} 933-9110 | www.jcdh.org
Sewing é’eﬁ'zson County Since 1917

Environmental Health Services
Jonathan Stanton, P.E., Director

August 11, 2021

Certified Mail
Return Receipt Requested

Mr. Tiger Lambert & Mr. Freddie Revis
General Managers

Mr. Don Wiggins
Environmental/Safety Coordinator

Bluestone Coke
3500 35™ Avenue North
Birmingham, Alabama 35207

Dear Sirs,

This letter is to inform you that the Health Department is, effective immediately, denying an
operating permit for Bluestone Coke, LLC. The detailed reasons for this denial are explained
below.

L Permit Background

The Jefferson County Board of Health Air Pollution Control Rules and Regulations (the
“Regulations”) require every major source of air pollution to have an Operating Permit in order to
lawfully operate. Bluestone is a major source of air pollution, as defined by the Regulations, and
Bluestone has submitted a permit application that states as such.

Bluestone currently operates under an Operating Permit, No. 4-07-0335-03 (the “Operating
Permit”), which was originally issued by the Health Department on October 3, 2014, to Walter
Energy, which operated the Facility under the name Walier Coke. The Operating Permit expired
on October 3, 2019. The Operating Permit was reissued to ERP Compliant Coke (“ERP”) on
February 16, 2016, after a change in ownership. ERP submitted an application to renew the
Operating Permit on March 15, 2019, more than six months prior to the Operating Permit’s
expiration.
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On August 8, 2019, ERP submitted a notification to the Health Department stating that the
parent company of ERP had changed to Bluestone Mineral, Inc, On October 9, 2019, Bluestone
submitted a notification to the Health Department stating that the name of ERP had been formally
changed to Bluestone Coke, LLC.

11. Statutory and Regulatory Background

The Jefferson County Board of Health (the “Board”) operates a local air pollution control
program in Jefferson County pursuant to §§22-3-1 through 12 of the Code of Alabama and the Air
Pollution Control Act. The Board promulgated the Regulations pursuant to and in accordance with
§§22-3-1 through 12 of the Code of Alabama and the Air Pollution Control Act.

The Regulations incorporate certain federal air quality standards. The United States
Environmental Protection Agency (the “EPA”) has promulgated National Emission Standards for
Hazardous Air Polluiants (the “NESHAP™). The NESHAP include Title 40, Part 63, Subpart L—
National Emission Standards for Coke Oven Batteries (“Subpart L") of the Code of Federal
Regulations. The NESHAP also include Title 40, Part 63, Subpart CCCCC—National Emission
Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Coke Ovens: Pushing, Quenching, and Battery Stacks
(“Subpart CCCCC”) of the Code of Federal Regulations.

The Board has incorporated Subpart L into the Regulations as §14.5.11. Any violation of
Subpart L is a violation of the Regulations. The Board has incorporated Subpart CCCCC into the
Regulations as §14.5.106. Any violation of Subpart CCCCC is a violation of the Regulations,

HI. Bluestone’s Noncompliance

A. The NOV -

On July 15, 2020, the Health Department issued Official Notice of Violation No. 3203 (the
“NOV”) to Bluestone. The NOV described Bluestone’s numerous violations of Part 6.9 of the
Regulations and certain federal standards that have been incorporated into the Regulations. The
NOV described Bluestone’s numerous violations of §6.9.3 of the Regulations, which governs the
visible emissions during the charging cycles of coke ovens, The NOV described Bluestone’s
numerous violations of §6.9.4 of the Regulations, which governs the visible emissions during the
pushing cycles of coke ovens. The NOV described Bluestone’s numerous violations of §6.9.6 of
the Regulations, which governs the visible emissions from coke oven doors. The NOV described
Bluestone’s numerous violations of §6.9.7 of the Regulations, which requires that coke ovens be
maintained in good condition and that any cracks be sealed as soon as practicable after they are
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detected. The NOV described Bluestone’s numerous violations of Subpart CCCCC, which requires
a source operating coke ovens to operate and maintain their air pollution control and monitoring
equipment in a manner consistent with good air pollution control practices. The NOV described
Bluestone’s numerous violations of Subpart L, which requires a source operating coke ovens to
develop, implement, and follow a work practice plan that is designed to achieve compliance with
visible emission limitations for certain parts of the coke production facility.

The NOV described how Bluestone’s Operating Permit requires it to comply with the
above-described authorities, and that such regulatory violations are also violations of the terms of
Bluestone’s Operating Permit. The NOV described how Bluestone’s violations of the terms of its
Operating Permit are deemed to be violations of the Regulations. The NOV described Bluestone’s
violations as having begun on January 1, 2020, and continuing up through the date the NOV was
issued (i.e., July 15, 2020).

A complete and accurate copy of the NOV is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and is fally
incorporated in this letier. With regard to the NOV, Bluestone did not exercise the administrative
rights afforded to it by the Regulations.

B. June 2021 Inspection

On June 15, 2021, a Health Department representative inspected the Facility, The Health
Department representative also reviewed Bluestone’s records in connection with the June 15,
2021, inspection. The physical inspection of the Facility on June 15, 2021, and the related review
of Bluestone’s records are collectively referred to herein as the “June 2021 Inspection.” The June
2021 Inspection revealed that Bluestone remained in violation of §6.9.3 of the Regulations, which
governs the visible emissions during the charging cycles of coke ovens. The June 2021 Inspection
revealed that Bluestone remained in violation of §6.9.4 of the Regulations, which governs the
visible emissions during the pushing cycles of coke ovens. The June 2021 Inspection revealed that
Bluestone remained in violation of §6.9.6 of the Regulations, which governs the visible emissions
from coke oven doors. The June 2021 Inspection revealed that Bluestone remained in violation of
§6.9.7 of the Regulations, which requires that coke ovens be maintained in good condition and that
any cracks be sealed as soon as practicable after they are detected. The June 2021 Inspection
revealed that Bluestone remained in violation of Subpart CCCCC, which requires a source
operating coke ovens to operate and maintain their air pollution control and monitoring equipment
in 2 manner consistent with good air pollution control practices. The June 2021 Inspection revealed
that Bluestone remained in violation of Subpart L, which requires a source operating coke ovens
to develop, implement, and follow a work practice plan that is designed to achieve compliance
with visible emission limitations for certain parts of the coke production facility. A complete and
accurate copy of the Health Department’s report of the June 2021 Inspection is attached hereto as
Exhibit “B™ and is fully incorporated in this letter.
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C. July 2021 Inspection

On July 23, 2021, Health Department representatives inspected the Facility. The Health
Department representatives also reviewed Bluestone’s records in connection with the July 23,
2021, inspection. The physical inspection of the Facility on J uly 23, 2021, and the related review
of Bluestone’s records, are collectively referred to herein as the “J uly 2021 Inspection.” The July
2021 Inspection revealed that Bluestone remained in violation of §6.9.3 of the Regulations, which
governs the visible emissions during the charging cycles of coke ovens. The J wly 2021 Inspection
revealed that Bluestone remained in violation of §6.9.4 of the Regulations, which governs the
visible emissions during the pushing cycles of coke ovens. The July 2021 Inspection revealed that
Bluestone remained in violation of §6.9.6 of the Regulations, which governs the visible emissions
from coke oven doors. The July 2021 Inspection revealed that Bluestone remained in violation of
§6.9.7 of the Regulations, which requires that coke ovens be maintained in good condition and that
any cracks be sealed as soon as practicable after they are detected. The July 2021 Inspection
revealed that Bluestone remained in violation of Subpart CCCCC, which requires a source
operating coke ovens to operate and maintain their air pollution control and monitoring equipment
in a manner consistent with good air pollution control practices. The J uly 2021 Inspection revealed
that Bluestone remained in violation of Subpart L, which requires a source operating coke ovens
to develop, implement, and follow a work practice plan that is designed to achieve compliance
with visible emission limitations for certain parts of the coke production facility. A complete and
accurate copy of the Health Department’s report of the July 2021 Inspection is attached hereto as
Exhibit “C” and is fully incorporated in this letter.

IV,  The Basis for Denying Bluestone’s Permit

Section 18.2.8(a) of the Regulations states that the “Health Officer shall deny an Operating
Permit if the applicant does not show that every article, machine, equipment, or other contrivance,
the use of which may cause the issuance of air contaminants, is so designed, controlled, or
equipped with such air pollution control equipment, that it is expected to operate without emitting
or without causing to be emitted air contaminants in violation of these rules and regulations.”

As described above, Bluestone has consistently failed to demonstrate compliance with the
Regulations for the past year. During each of the past three inspections, the Health Department’s
representatives have observed the emission of coke oven gases in violation of the Regulations.
Likewise, these inspections revealed that Bluestone's coke ovens have been operating in violation
of several provisions of state and federal rules.

Based on the violations detailed above and in the attached documents, Bluestone has not
shown that its machines and equipment are expected to operate without emitting air contaminants
in violation of the Regulations. In fact, Bluestone has demonstrated that it is unable to operate its
machines and equipment in compliance with the Regulations, Consequently, Bluestone is denied
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an operating permit. With regard to Bluestone's administrative rights, please see Chapter 12 of the
Regulations.

V. The Effects of Denving Bluestone’s Permit

On its face, the Operating Permit expired on October 3, 2019. The Regulations provide that
“[i]{ a timely and complete application for a permit renewal is submitted, but the Department fails
to take final action to issue or deny the renewal permit before the end of the term of the previous
permit, then the permit shall not expire until the renewal permit has been issued or denied, and any
permit shield granted for the permit shall continue in effect during that time.” Regulations
$18.12.2(c).

This letter constitutes a final action denying Bluestone a renewal permit. Consequently,
Bluestone no longer has a permit allowing it to lawfully operate.

Sincerely,

onathan Stanton, Director
Environmental Health Services
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JEFFERSON COUNTY DEPARTMENT O HEALTH
Environmental Health Services 3203
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JEFFERSON COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

1400 Sixrrt Avenug, SouTit « PO. Box 2648 ¢ BirMinGtiam, AL 35302-2648 =205.937.9] 10 »www JCoH.ORG

Environmental Health Services
lonathan Stanton, PE., Director

Tuly 15, 2020

Certified Mail
Return Receipt Requested

Notice of Viglation Letter, NOV # 3203

Mr. Tiger Lambert & Mr. Freddie Revis
General Managers

Mr. Don Wiggins

Environmental/Safety Coordinator
Bluestone Coke

3500 35" Avenue North

Birmingham, Alabama 35207

Dear Sirs,

Bluestone Coke LLC {Bluestone) holds Title V Operating Perrit 4-07-0355-03, issued by the
Department in accordance with Chapter (8 of the Jefferson County Board of Health Air
Pollution Control Rules and Regulations (Rules & Regulations or “Local Regulations™).
Bluestone's Title V permit includes applicable requirements for sources of air emissions,
including but not limited to Coke Batteries 3, 4 and 5. The applicable reqnirements addressed hy
this Notice of Violation include provisions of Part 6.9 of the Rules and Regulations, and the
Maximum Available Control Technology (MACT) standards 40 CFR 63, Subpart L and Subpart
CCCCC, which are incorporated by reference in Chapter 14 of the Rules & Regulations. EPA
has delegated to the Department enforcement of MACT standards which have been incorporated
in Chapter 14 by reference. The permit requirements pertinent to this notice of violation are cited
within this letter and are presented with selected regulatory text in an attachment for the
convenierce of the reader, including explanatory notes for the layperson.

The permit requires daily inspections to determine compliance with the MACT standards. Daily
visual observations of the battery are performed by a contractor, Direct Environmental Services,
LLC (DES). The permit also requires reporting of emissions and compliance status consistent
with the MACT and the Rules and Regulations.

The Department has reviewed the daily inspection reports from July of 2019 to present, and has
found numerous exceedances of Part 6.9 and MACT emissions limitations, Blugstone has not
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provided records related to uncontrolled pushing emisstons in a timely manner as required by the
permit and the Rules & Regulations, These violations will be described in detail below,

1. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE QOF CAPTURE AND CONTROL SYSTEM
FOR PUSHING EMISSIONS

This section describes noncompliance with Title V Permit 4-07-0353-03, EU 021, pertaining to
the operation and maintenance of equipment to capture and control emissions from coke pushing
operations:

» Condition 13, Good Engineering Practice & Minimize Emissions to the Level of Subpart
CCCCC (incorporating §63.7300(a) and $63.7300(b ) L}-¢3)), and

* Condition 4, Subpart CCCCC (identifies facility as subject 1o 40 CFR 63, Subpart
CCCCC and serves as a catch-all for applicable requirements that are not directly
referenced and/or reprinted in full in the permit)

Pushing emissions at Bluestone are captured by a belt-driven moveable hood which travels on an
overhead rail in conjunction with a moveable intake in the ductwork, A stationary baghouse then
collects the pushing emissions. The tapture system is subject to an operating limit under
§63.7290(b)(3). The captured emissions are directed to a baghouse which is subject to an
emissions limitation under §63.7290(2)(2). Rased on malfunction reports and emissions
estimates submitted by Bluestone, Blusstone begun experiencing persistent problems with the
collection system in late 2019 which have caused ovens to be pushed uncontrolled while the
hood has been down for repairs. Bluestone is required to operate the capture system, including
the hood, and the baghouse to meet the emissions limits of Subpart CCCCC at all times by
§63.7300(a).

Almost 6 months into 2020, it appears thal capture system repairs are still not completed. The
daily pushing reports indicate that the hood was not used on any push read for MACT
compliance from April 14, 2020 to June 16, 2020. During the Department’s most recent
inspection on June 22, 2020, it was observed thar the hood still cannot be used for certain ovens
until additional repairs are made.

Under §63.7300(c)(1), Bluestone must complete repairs within 30 days or submit a request for
extension including a plan to complete the repairs to the Department il additional time is needed.
Bluestone has not requested an extension and has not provided a plan to restore the capture and
control system to full operation. Even if Bluestone can demonstrate that no individual repair has
required more than 30 days to complete, these repairs have taken the pushing controls out of
service for at least one oven each day for the entire year 2020 to date except for 20 days, as
indicated by the daily pushing observations. The Department believes that the cause of the
downtime is inadequate maintenance over g substantial time period and that these problems
cannot be called “malfunctions™ consistent with the definition at §63.2. Bluestone is not meeting
the general duty to minimize emissions from pushing as required by Subpart CCCCC.
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Compliance with the capture system operating limit and the baghouse emission limit cannot be
demonstrated while the hood and associated ductwork are nofunctional.

2. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF COKE OVEN BATTERIES

This section describes noncompliance with Title V Permit 4-07-0355-03, EU 021, pertaining to
visible emissions from coke pushing operations:

» Condition I, Applicability — Visible Emissions Restriction (incorporating 6.9.4 and Title
V monitoring under Chapter [8)

* Condition 13, Good Engineering Practice & Minimize Emissions to the Level of Subpart
CCCCC (incorporating §63.7300(a) and §63.7300(b)(1)-(3n

» Condition 14, Subpart CCCCC — Continuous Compliance with the Operation and
Maintenance Requirements (incorporaling $63.7335)

The contractor’s daily pushing observations and corrective action records kept in conjunction
with Subpart CCCCC do indicate that Bluestone is generally following the MACT requirements
for identification of ovens with excessive pushing emissions and documenting causes and
corrective actions. These requirements are included in section 2 of Attachment 2 for reference.
{See Table 1 of Attachment 3 for a list of ovens subject to MACT corrective actions and the
dates of any deviations.) However, examination of these daily records of pushes observed by
DES indicate that Bluestone does not take sufficient action to prevent exceedances of Section
6.9.4 of the Rules and Regulations. Review of the daily records located 42 instances in which I5-
second readings of greater than 40% from more than one oven on the same battery within a 60-
minute period are recorded during daity Subpart CCCCC inspections have occurred since July [,
2019. (See Table 2 of Attachment 3 for description.) . The most egregious example of this
occurred on May 20, 2020, when ovens 202, 235 and 232 were identified for MACT corrective
actions within the 10 am hour, with MACT averaged emissions of 78%. 93% and 90%,
respectively.

Consecutive daily readings of the same oven show peak opacity readings greater than 40% for 3
days or more, yet these ovens remained in operation. Problems creating excess opacity are
addressed when MACT corrective actions are triggered, but a single peak reading greater than
40% is not likely to trigger MACT corrective actions when averaged with (up to) 5 other 13-
second interval readings. These violations of Section 6.9.4 of the Rules and Regulations are an
indicator that Bluestone is not meeting the requirements of Section 6.9.7 to maintain ovens in
good condition to promote complete coking,

Additionally, under Subpart CCCCC, Bluestone is required to prepare and operate at all times
according to a written operation and maintenance plan for the operation and maintenance of the
coke oven batteries and their capture systems and control devices (see §63.7300(b) and (¢)). The
Department notes that Bluestone's work practice plan sets a threshold of 23% opacity for MACT
corrective actions, which is lower than the actual MACT threshold, which is 309% opacity. (See
page 22 of Bluestone’s work practice plan, revised September 2019.) There is no indication in
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the reports reviewed by the Department that Bluestone actual| y uses the lower threshold [or
corrective actions. Therefore Bluesione is not operating in accordance with its written operation
and maintenance plan in violation of §63.7300.

3. DOORS, OFFTAKES and CHARGING OPERATIONS

This section describes noncompliance with Title V Permit 4-07-0355-03, EU 009, 012 and 013,
pertaining to leaking doors and offiakes, and o visible emissions from charging operations:

* Condition 5, Percent Leaking Doors Restriction {citing Subpart L and 6.9.6)
Condition 7, Percent Leaking Offtake System Restriction (citing Subpart L and 6.9.5)
Condition 8, Charging Visible Emissions Time Restriction (citing Subpart L)
Condition 9, Charging Visible Emissions Opacity Restriction (citing 6.9.3)

* & »

Subpart L requires daily inspections to rally leaks from doors, offtakes and lids, and daily
observations of charges using EPA Method 303. Bluestone is required by 40 CFR 863.306 to
maintain a Work Practice Plan for these emission points, and to “implement” the work practice
plan if certain triggers are met.

Work practice plan implementation is required to address frequent exceedances of Subpart L
limits over any 6 month period. The pluin English explanation of “independent” exceedances:
First, 2 or more exceedances of the 30-day (regular or logarithmic) average occurring 30 days or
Imore apart (within a 6 month period) are “independent” and implementation has been triggered.
Second, implementation may also be triggered as early as the second exceedance if the exclusian
of the highest single day inspection results within the 30-day period produces a 29-day ( regular
or logarithmic) average that alsc exceeds the applicable emission limit. This second
circumstance is also termed “independent.”

Work practice plan implementation must continue until the visible emission limitation for the
emission point has heen achieved for 90 consecutive days pursuant to 40 CFR §63.306(c)(1)(1i).
Bluestane has numerous exceedances of the applicable limits for doors, offtakes and charges, as
enumerated in Tables 3, 4 and § of Attachment 3. A status summary is presented below,

Doors are subject (0 a 3.3% limit on leaks as a 30-day average. Currently, Bluestone is reguired
to implement the work practice plan for doors on all 3 batteries. The status of compliance as of
July 11, 2020 is:

* Battery 3 doors have exceeded the applicable limit for 144 consecutive days, for a total of
163 days in 2020 (to date),

* Battery 4 dooes have exceeded the applicable limit for 78 consecutive days, for a total of
84 days in 2020 (to date).

¢ Battery 5 doors have exceeded the applicable limit for 80 consecutive days, for a total of
51 days in 2020 (to date),
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Offtakes are subject to a 2.5% limit on leaks as a 30-day average. Currently, Bluestone is
required 1o implement the work practice plan for offlakes on batteries 3 and 5. The status of
compliance as of July 11, 2020 is:

¢ DBattery 3 offtakes have exceeded the applicable limit for 71 consecutive days, for a total
of 83 days in 2020 (1o date).

* Battery 4 offtakes have exceeded Lhe applicable limit for 26 consecutive days, for a total
of 34 days in 2020 (to date).

¢ Battery 5 offtakes exceeded the applicable limit for a total of 29 days in 2020 (to date).

Charging emissions are subject o a 12 limit on visible emissions as a 30-day log average.
Batteries 3 and < are treated as one battery for the observation of charging emissions. Currently,
Bluestone is required to Implerment the work practice plan for charging on all 3 batieries. The
status of compliance as of July [ 1, 2020 is:

* Baueries 3 and 4 charges have exceeded the applicable limit for 45 consecutive days, for
atotal of 125 days in 2020 (1o date).

* Battery 5 charges have exceeded the applicable limit for 38 consecutive days, for a total
of 50 days in 2020 (to date).

These emission points are also subject to emissions limitations under the Rules and Regulations.
The local limits are based on a single pass observation. Under normal circumstances, the
Department inspects Bluestone once a month for compliance with the applicable local
requirements for doors, offtakes, lids and charges. The Departrnent noted a violation of the local
limitation on charging emissions (3 minutes in any consecutive 60 minutes on any battery per
Paragraph 6.9.3 of the Rules and Regulations) an February 20, 2020. On that date, a single
charge of oven 180 exceeded 3 minutes. On June 20, 2020, the percentage of leaking doors on
Battery 4 exceeded 15% during a single run. Daily Method 303 readings performed by the
contractor also show occasional exceedances of the Iocal limits,

Even though Bluestone is required to implement the work practice plan for emissions points
enumerated above, the duration of the exceedances indicate current measures are insufficient to
comrect these violations. The Department may require Bluestone io revise the work practice plan
in accordance with §63.306(d) for charging emissions, offtakes, and doors.

At this time, the Department requires that Bluestone examine the causes of these persistent
exeeedances of Subpart L, including but not limited to such causes as deficiencies in the work
practice plan, failure to adhere to the plan, and inadequate maintenunce, A report of the findings
shall be submitied no later than July 31, 2020.

4. REQUIREMENTS FOR SPARE DOORS AND LIDS

This section describes noncompliance witl: Title V Permit 4-07-0355-03, EU 009,012 and 015,
pertaining mainlaining an inventory of spare doors and lids:
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s Condition 12, Work Practice Standards {citing §63.306(a). §63.307 and §63.309¢h))
* Condition 16, Oven Maintenance iciting 6.9.7)
+ Condition 17, Coke Oven Standards (incorporating 6.9.6)

Subparagraph 6.9.6(d) of the Rules and Regulations states: “Every persan operating coke pvens
shall have a facility to maintain and repair coke oven doors, and shall maintain an inventory of
one (1) coke oven door per twelve (12) ovens operated.” On January 7, 2020, the Department
inspected the Bluestone door shop for compliance with this requirement. On that day, 76 ovens
were in service, requiring 7 spare doors under the Rules and Regulations. Bluestone only had 2
spate doars ready to be used.

Bluestone’s Work Practice Plan includes a pracedure to maintain an adequate inventory of sparg
door and jambs as required by Subpan L. On pages 1 as 12, it states that [0% coke side doors
and jambs, 10% pusher side USS doors and jambs, and 10% pusher side Koppers doors and
Jjarabs, as well as 2 crates of spare lids, shall be kept casite on an on-going basis. The guantity of
spare doors observed on Januury 2, 2020 does not meet Bluestone's work praciice plan.
Additionally, no spare jambs and no spare lids were observed on that date.

Under §63.311(£)(4), Bluestone is required to examine and record the inventory of spare doars
and jambs within 10 days of being required to implement the work practice ptan for doors.
Bluestone has been aware that numerous doors and jambs need replacement and has been
ordering replacements because the quantity in inventory has not been sufficient to complete all
needed door repairs. Continving exceedances of limits for leaking doors strongly suggest that the
inventory of spare doors and jambs is not in compliance with the applicable requirements at this
time.

5. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

This section describies noncompliance with Title V Permit 4-07-0355-03, General Conditions,
pertaining o reporting of events in which emissions in excess of the applicable regulatory limits
are released to the atmosphere:

*  General Condition 6, Maintenance of Equipment: Reporiing (citing 1.12.1, 18.2.4 and
13.2.8(a))

¢ (eneral Condition 7, Malfunction: Reporting (eiting 1.12.2, 18.2.4 and [8.2.8(a)}
General Condition 17, Deviations (citing 18.5.3(c)(2) and 40 CEFR 63)

In 2019 and January of 2020, Bluestone was timely in reporting breakdowns. repairs and the
number of ovens pushed without controls. However, a5 one repair led to the entification of
additional needed repairs, Bluestone has been delinquent in reporting of maintenance and
uncontrolied pushes. The Department is aware that repairs of defects which prevent operation of
the capture and control system is on-going, although specific descriptions are not being provided
on an on-going basis. Bluestone also has failed to submit 1o the Department reports of the
number of uncontrolied pushes since at least February 12, 2020.
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Ctmciuding Remarks

This notice of violation does not cover all emission paiats at your facility. The Department
reserves the right to issue additional natjces of violation based on any violation discovered after
this time for any emissions point as well us for previous violations not identified herein and not
covered by a prior enforcement action,

Sincerely,

1
‘Easmz Howanitz, M.S, PE.

Senior Air Pollution Control Engineer
Alr & Radiation Protection Division

JH/kp

T o TR, R e b
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ATTACHMENT 1
Pracess Explanation for the Loyperson

At Bluestone, eoch battery consists of 30 or 60 adjacent vertical slot ovens, Combustion gases poss through the
wails between ovens ta heat ther. Each aven has a toial of 6 openings (“ports”) on the top of the battery. On
one end, the “pusher side,” the opening is equipped with an “offtake” which directs guses from the aven into the
collecting main. The remaining openings are covered by lids when they are not open for aperational purposes
The four mitldle ports are used to pluce coal into the oveps. The port an the end opposite the offtake is used o
direct gases from an oven inta the adjacent oven while the oven 1s being charged. Coal is placed into the ovens
from the top of the battery (see the charging description below). The coal (s then heated {“coked”) for 18 or more
hours untit the volatile material has been driven aut of the cool. The volatile materials (row coke oven gas) flow
‘above the conl into an “offtake” which leads to the callecting main, which carries the gases to the byproducts
glant for cleaning and separation.

After coking, the remaining solid material {“coke”) is pushed from the oven using a moveable “pusher” with a
ram that is extended through the oven, pushing the coke into a "“hot cor” positioned on the “coke side” of the
buttery. The hot cor is o specialized rail car that transports the hot coke ta the guench tower then to an area
called the “wharf” for further cooling and transportation to the coke screening equipment, Pushing emissions
produced at the end of the oven as hot coke is pushed are coptured by a moveable hood connectagf to o
stationary baghouse. The associoted ductwork uses a belt on rollers to niave the hood and the cpening from the
hood into the duct to the required location to capture pushing emissions, It usually takes less than o minute to
push the coke from an oven. The specity and duration of particulute matter emissions from the hot coke after it
has been pushed out of the aven and before it has been quenched varies with soch psh,

Charging means the addition of cool ta o coke oven. Coal is lsoded from the centrally focated tower into open
bins that are part of a moveable “larry cor” which then travels orross the battery to the oven [o be chorged.
There is one bin for each charging hole [ “port”) an an oven. A “drop sleeve” is extended from beneath eoch bin
fnto each charging hole to direct the coal inta the oven with minimal spilluge. An exira part on the end of each
aven opposite the offtakes is used, in conjunction with o relocatable “fumper” pipe. to direct gases displaced ane
generated by the addition of coal into an adjaceni oven, where the guases then flow into the collecting main
which extents across the battery. Visible Charging emissions occur when the gas esciipes from the charging ports
or the larry car. At Bluestane, it typicaily tokes ebout 3 to 5 minutes to empty the coaf into an oven gnd to level
the coal inside the battery using a “leveiing orm” which is operated by the pusher car through an opening on the
battery door, called a “chuck door.” Bluestane can charge up to 6 ovens in an hour, based on equipment
canstraints.

The process is not subject to startups or shutdowns in the normal course of operations,

There are 2 main sources of regulation for battery operations. The JCBH Air Pollution Control Rules angf
Regulations (“locol regulations™ or "Rules & Requlations” for coke oven batteries are located in Part 6.9, Federal
requiations, called Maximurm Available Control Technology (“MACT”} standards, for coke battery operations
include 40 CFR 63, Subpart L, §§ 63.300 through 63.313 and 40 CER 63, Subpart COCCC, §5 63.7280 through
63.7352. These regulations are included in Bluestone’s Title v Operoting Permit Number 4-07-0355-013, issued by
the Department in accordance with Chapter 18 of the Rules and Regulations
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ATTACHMENT 2
PERTINENT PERMIT CONDITIONS AND REGULATIONS
With Explanatory Text for the layperson

1. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF CAPTURE AND CONTROL SYSTEM FOR PUSHING EMISSIONS

Pushing emissions are those particilote matter emissions wiich resuft froem the action of pushing coke from the
oven it the hot car ond also from the hot coke uniil it is guenched. Subpurt CCCCC requires these emissions to
be captured ond controlled ot all times. At Bluestone, o moveable haod is used to capture pushing emissions,
which are transported to a stotionory baghouse which collects the porticulate motter. Mumerous factars
contribute to the proper positioning and operation of the hood. Maintenonce and repairs are inevitable,
however, uncontrolled pushes can be minimized by pousing pushing operatians when the copture system fs
down. Subpart CCOCC requires repairs ko be accomplished within 30 days of discovering a deficiency or defect.
Title VV Permit No. 4-07-0355-03 includes these requiraments, presented below, af Emissions Unit 021,

Title V Permit 4-07-0355-03

EU D21, Condition 13, Good Engineering Practice & Minimize Emissions to the Level of Subpart CCCCC
(incorporating §63.7300(a) and §63.7300{b){1)-(5))

§63.7300(a) “As required by §63.6(e)(1)(i), you must always operate and maintain your affected source,
including air pollution controf and monitaring equipment, in a mannear consistent with good air polution
control practices for minimizing emissions at least to the levels required by this subpart.”

This requirement is commonly included in MACT standords and is often referred to as a “general duty clouse.”
Bluestone is hereby required to use the capture and control systems af affl times to minimize ermissions in
compliunce with the requirements of Conditions 5 and 6, presented befow. §63.7300{b) is discussed in section 2.

EU 021, Condition 4, Subpart CCCCC (identifies facility as subject to 40 CFR 63, Subpart CCCCC and serves as a
catch-all for applicable requirements that are not directly referenced and/or reprinted in full in the permit)

§63.7300(c)(1) "... In the event a defect or deficiency is found in the capture system (during a monthly
inspection or between inspections), you must complete repairs within 30 days after the date that the
defect or deficiency is discovered. |f you determine that the repairs cannot he completed within 30
days, you must submit a written request for an extension of time to complete the repalrs that must be
received by the permitting authority not more than 20 days after the date that the defect or deficiency
is discovered. The request must contain a description of the defect or deficiency, the steps needed and
taken to correct the problem, the interim steps being taken to mitigate the emissions impact of the
defect or deficiency, and a proposed schedule for completing the repairs. The request shall be deemed
approved unless and until such time as the permitting authority notifies you that It ebjects to the
request. The permitting authority may consider all relevant factors in deciding whether to approve or
deny the request {including feasibility and safety). Fach approved schedule must provide for completion
of repairs as expediticusly as practicable, and the permitting authority may request madifications to the
propased schedule as part of the approval process.” femphasis added)

This is the proper procedure for when repairs of the capture system cannot be accemplished within 30 days.

§63.2 “Malfunction means any sudden, infrequent, and not reasonably preventable failure of air
pollution control and monitoring equipment, process equipment, or a process to operate in a normal or
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usual manner which causes, or has the potential to cause, the emission limitations in an applicable
standard to be exceeded. Failures that are caused in part by poor maintenance or careless operation
are not malfunctions.” (emphasis added)

Self-explanatory.
Ei} 021, Condition 5, Subpart CCECE - Emissians Limitation — PV {incorporating §63.7290{a}{2}}

§63.7290(a}(2) “You must not discharge to the atmasphere emissions of particulate matter from a
control device applied to pushing emissions from a new or existing coke oven battery that exceed ... 0.02
pound per tan (ib/ton} of coke if a moveable hood vented to a stationary control device is used to
capture emissions ,,.”

Fushing emissions are coptured by the hood and tronsported to the bughouse through ductwork. Subpart CCCCC
also includes requirements for other acceptuble control devices, with individua! emission limits nat repeated
here. Camplionce is determined by periodic performance testing. However. operation and performance testing of
the baghouse is meaningless when pushing emissions gre not heing captured,

ElJ 021, Condition 6, Subpart CCCCC —~ Operating Limit (incorperating §63.7290(h)(3})

§63.7290(h)(3) "For each capture system applied to pushing emissions, you must maintain the daily
average volumetric flow rate at the inlet of the control device at or above the minimum level
established during the initial performance test; or {i} For each capture system that uses an electric
mator to drive the fan, you must maintain the daily average fan motor amperes at or ahove the
minimum level established during the initial performance test...”

Bluestone established an operating limit for the capture system during performance testing, However, this
operating limit is meaningless when the hood is not used to capture emissions.

2. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF COKE OVEN BATTERIES

Pushing emissions are thuse visible porticiiote matter emissions which resuit from the action of pushing coke
from the oven and afso from the hot coke until it is quenched, Excessive apacity of pushing emissions is an
indication of incomplete coking, which may be caused by inadequate coking time or by defects in the oven
Batteries 3 and 4 ore treated us one buttery for the purposes of observing pushing emissions. Al botteries at
Bluestone consist of “short” ovens with vertical flues. Title V Parmit No. 4-(17-0355-03 includes these
requirements at Emissions Unit 02 1.

Title V Permit 4-07-0355-03

EU 021, Conditian 1, Applicability — Visible Emissions Restriction {incorporating 6.9.4 and Title V monitoring
under Chapter 18)

6.9.4 Pushing. “There shall be no visible ernissions during the pushing cycle, other than water mist ar
vapor, with an opacity which is greater than forty percent (40%) for more than one {1) push per hour per
battery or for more than two (2) consecutive pushes from the same oven.”

These limits on pushing emissions address hourly emissions and indications of corrective actions. Pushes are read
cantinuously, assigning opucity consistent with EPA Methad 9 (40 CFR 60, Appendix A}, but only the peak opacity
is recorded. Generally, peck emissions over 40% indicate incomplete coking, which may be attributed to
inadequate coking time and/or oven defects. The causels) should be addressed and corrected promptly, or the
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aven may be taken out of service for repairs. Repeated pushes with peak apacity grearter than 40% from the
same aven indicate that the couse of excessive pushing emissions has not been promptly corrected.

JCBH Air Pollution Control Rules and Regulations, 6.9.7 Oven Maintenance
6.9.7(a) All ovens shall be maintained in good condition to promate complete coking of coal,
6.9.7{b] All coke oven tracks are to be sealed as scon as practicable after they are detected,

Self-explonotory. The Departmant will point out that faking on gven out of service uatil repairs are muode is not o
violation of this provision. However, repeated pushes of the same oven when the opacity exceeds 40% strongly
suggests that the oven is not being maintoined in good condition and/or is not being promptly repaired,
Paragroph 6.9.7 s included in EU 003, 012, and 015 for battery operations, but it also applicable to pushing
2missions,

EU 021, Condition 7, Subpart CCCCC ~ Work Practice Standards (incorporating §63.7291(a)(1)-{4) and
incorporating 563.7334 {a) by reference)

EU 021, Condition 8, Subpart CCCCC - Fugitive Pushing Emissions: Corrective Actions/Increase Coking Time
{incarporating §63.7291(a){5) and summarizing §63.7291(a){6)(i}-{il) and {7)-(i)

To summarize the requirements for observing visible pushing emissions on a daily basis: At least 4 pshes must
be read eqch day. Each oven must be read at least once per quarter. Pushes are read ot 15 second intervals,
assigning opacity consistent with EPA Method 5 (40 CFR 60, Appendix A), but only the & highest readings cre
used to calculate the average opacity. Corrective uctions ere required when the calculated average opacity of o
push exceeds 30%, and must be confirmed by 2 consecutive follow-up readings which do not exceed 30%. Coking
time may be icreased and/or defects In the oven may be repaired (with or without taking the oven cut of
service). A pracedure is included in Subpart CCCCC to demonstrate that cokng time may be reduced subsequent
to coerective actions. The text reproduced below includes only the requirements that apply to Bivastone's ncrual
equigment.

§63.7291(a) You must meet each requirement in paragraphs (aj{1) through (7} of this section for each
new or existing by-product coke oven battery with vertical flues.

(1) Observe and record the opacity of fugitive pushing emissions from each aven at least once
every 90 days. If an oven cannot he observed during a 90-day period due to circumstances that
were not reasonably avoidable, you must observe the apacity of the first push of that oven
following the close of the 90-day periad that is capable of being observed in accordance with
the procedures in §63.7334(a), and you must document why the oven was not observed within
a 90-day period. All opacity observations of fugitive pushing emissions far batteries with vertical
flues must be made using the procedures In §63.7334(a).

{2} If two or mare batteries are served by the same pushing gquipment and total no more than
90 ovens, the batteries as a unit can be considered a single battery.

{3} Observe and record the opacity of fugitive pushing emissions for at least four consecutive
pushes per battery each day. Exclude any push during which the observer's view Is obstructed or
obscured by interferences and ohserve the next available push to complete the set of four
pushes. If necessary due to circumstances that were not reasonably avoidable, you may observe
fewer than four consecutive pushes in a day; however, you must observe and record as many
consecutive pushes as possible and document why four consecutive pushes could not be
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observed. You may observe and record one or more non-consecutive pushes in addition to any
consecutive pushes observed in a day,

(4) Do not alter the pushing schedule ta change the sequence of consacutive pushes to be
abserved on any day. Keep records indicating the legitimate gperational reason for any change
in your pushing schedule which results in a change in the sequence of consecutive pushes
observed on any day.

{5) If the average opacity for any individual push exceeds 30 percent opacity for any short
battery ..., you must take corrective action and/or increase coking time for that oven. You must
tomplete corrective action or increase coking time within either 10 calendar days or the number
of days determined using Equation 1 of this section, whichever is greater:

X=055%Y {Eg. 1)
Whera:

X = Number of calendar days allowed to complete corractive action or increase coking
time; and

Y = Current coking time for the cven, hours.

Far the purpose of determining the number of calendar days allowed under Equation 1 of this
section, day one is the first day following the day you observed an opacity in excess of 30
percent for any short battery .... Any fraction produced by Equation 1 of this section must be
counted as a whole day, Days during which tha oven is removed from service are not included in
the number of days allowed to complete corrective action.

(8) (i) You must demanstrate that the corrective action and/ar increased coking time was
successful. After a period of time no longer than the number of days allowed in paragraph (a)(5}
of this section, observe and record the opacity of the first two pushes for the oven capable of
being observed using the procedures In §63.7334({a). The corrective action and/or increased
coking time was successful if the average opacity for each of the two pushes is 30 percent or less
for a short battery .... [f the corrective action and/or increased coking time was successful, you
may return-the oven to the 90-day reading retation described in paragraph (a}{1) of this section,
If the average opacity of either push exceeds 30 percent for a short battery ..., the corrective
action and/or increased coking time was unsuccessful, and you must complete additional
corrective action and/for Increase coking tirme for that oven within the number of days aliowed
in paragraph {a){5} of this section.

(ii) After implementing any additional corrective action and/or increased coking time
required under paragraph (a)(6){i} or (a)(7){ii) of this section, you must demonstrate that
corrective action and/or increased coking time was successful. After a period of time no
tonger than the number of days allowed in paragraph (a)(5] of this section, you must
obiserve and record the opacity of the first two pushes for the oven capable of being
observed using the procedures in §63.7334(a). The corrective action and/or increased
coking time was successful if the average opacity for each of the two pushes is 30
percent or less for @ shart battery .... (f the corrective action and/or Increased coking
time was successful, you may return the oven to the 90-day reading rotation described
in paragraph (a)(1) of this section. If the average opacity of either push exceeds 30
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percent for a short battery ..., the corrective actlon and/or increased coking time was
unsuccessful, and you must follow the procedures in paragraph (a)(6){iii) of this section.

(iif} If the corrective action and/or increased coking time was unsuccessful as described
in paragraph {a){6){ii) of this section, you must repeat the procedures in paragraph
(a}{6)(1i) of this section until the corrective action and/or increased coking time is
suecessful. You must report to the parmitting authorlty as a deviation 2ach unsuccessful
attempt at corrective action and/or increased coking time under paragraph (a){6){ii} of
this section,

{i) If at any time you place an oven on increased coking time as a result of fugitive

pushing emissions that exceed 30 percent for a short battery ..., you must keep the oven on the
increased coking time until the oven qualifies for decreased coking time using the procedures in
paragraph (a}{7){ii) or {a){7}{iii} of this section.

(ii) To gualify for a decreased coking time for an oven placed on increased coking time in
accordance with paragraph (a){5} or (&} of this section, you must operate the oven on
the decreased coking time. After no more than two coking cycles on the decreased
coking time, you must observe and record the opacity of the first two pushes that are
capable of being observed using the procedures in §63.7334(a). If the average opacity
far each of the two pushes is 30 percent or less for a short battery ..., you may keep the
oven on the decreased coking time and return the aven to the 90-day reading rotation
deseribed in paragraph {8){1) of this section. if the average opacity of either push
exceeds 30 percent for a short battery ..., the attempt to qualify for a decreased coking
time was unsuccessful. You rnust then return the aven to the praviously established
increased coking time, or implement other corrective action(s) and/or increased coking
time. if you implement other carrective action and/or a coking time that is shorter than
the previously established increased coking time, you must follow the procedures in
paragraph {a}(6)(il) of this section to confirm that the corrective action(s) and/or
increased coking time was successful.

(iti} If the attempt to qualify for decreased coking time was unsuccesstul as described in
paragraph (a)(7)(ii} of this section, you may again attempt to qualify for decreased
coking time for the oven. Ta do this, you must operate the oven on the decreased
coking time. After no more than two coking cycles on the decreased coking time, you
must observe and record the opacity of the first two pushes that are capable of being
observed using the procedures in §63 7334(a). If the average opacity for each of the two
pushes is 30 percent or less for a short battery ..., you may keep the oven on the
decreasad coking time and return the oven to the 90-day reading rotation described in
paragraph {a)(1) of this section. If the average opacity of either push exceeds 30 percent
for a siort battery ..., the attempt to qualify for a decreased coking time was
unsuccessful. You must then return tha oven to the previously established increased
caking time, or implement other corrective action(s) and/or Increased coldng time. If
you implement other corrective action and/or a coking time that is shorter than the
previously established increased caking time, you must follow the procedures in
paragraph (a)(6)(ii) of this section to confirm that the corrective action(s) and/or
increased coking time was successful.
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(iv} You must report to the permitting authority as a deviation the second and any
subsequent consecutive unsuccessul attempts on the same oven to qualify far
decreased coking time as described in paragraph (a)(7){iii) of this sectian.

§63.7334(a) For each by-product coke aven hattery with vertical flues subject 1o the wark
practice standards for fugitive pushing emissions in §63.7291(a), you must demonstrate
continuous compliance according to the requirements of paragraphs {a}{1) through (8) of this

section:

(1) Observe and record the opacity of fugitive emissions for four consecutive pushes per
operating day, except you may make fewer or nen-consecutive observations as
permitted by §63.7291(a}(3). Maintain records of the pushing schedule for each oven
and records indicating the legitimate operational reason for any change in the pushing
schedule according to §63.7291{a}(4).

(2) Observe and record the opacity of fugitive emissians from each oven in a battery at
least once every 90 days. If an aven cannat be observed during a 90-day period, ohserve
and record the opacity of the first push of that oven following the close of the 90-day
period that can be read in accordance with the procedures in paragraphs {a){1] through
{8) of this section,

{3) Make all observations and calculations for opacity observations of fugitive pushing
emnissions in accordance with Method 9 in appendix A to 40 CFR part 60 using a Method
3 certified observer unless you have an approved alternative procedure under
paragraph (a}(7} of this section.

{4) Record pushing opacity observations at 15-secand intervais as required in section 2.4
of Method 9 {appendix A to 40 CFR part 60). The requirement in section 2.4 of Methad 9
for a minimum of 24 observations does not apply, and the data reduction reguirements
in section 2.5 of Method 9 do nat apply. The requirement in §63.6(h)(5)(ii)(B) for
obtaining at least 3 hours of observations (thirty 6-minute avarages) to demonstrate
initial compliance does not apply.

(5) If fewer than six but at least four 15-second obsarvatians can be méade, use the
average of the total number of abservations to caiculate average apacity for the push.
Missing one or more cbservations during the push (e.g., as the quench car passes
behind a huilding) does not invalidate the observations before or after the interference
for that push. However, a minimum of four 15-second readings must be made for a valid
ohsarvation.

{6} Begin observations for a push at the first detectable movement of the coke mass.
End observations of a push when the quench car enters the guench tower.

(iii) You may reposition after the push to observe emissions during travel if
necessary,
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(8) For each oven observed that exceeds an opacity of 30 percent for any short battery
.., you must take corrective action and/or increase the coking time in accordance with
§63.7291{a). Maintain records documenting conformance with the requirements in
§63.7291(a).

EU 021, Condition 13, Good Engineering Practice & Minimize Emissions to the Level of Subpart CCCCC
{incorporating §63.7300(a) and §63.7300(b){1)-(5))

§63.7300(a} "As required by §63.6(e){1){i), you must always operate and maintain your affected source,
including air pollution control and monitoring equipment, in a manner consistent with good air pollution
control practices for minimizing emissions at least to the levels required by this subpart.”

This requirement is commonly included in MACT stondords and is often referred to s a “generol duty clause.”

EU (21, Condition 14, Subpart CCCCC — Cantinuous Compliance with the Operation and Maintenance
Requirements (incorparating §63.7335)

Bluestone is required to have ond operate the batteries occording to o written operation and maintenonce glon
at ol times.

§63.7335(a) “For each by-product coke oven batiery, you must demonstrate cantinuous compliance
with the operation and maintenance requirements in §63.7300(b) by adhering at all times to the plan
requirements and recording all information needed to document conformance.”

§63.7300(b} You must prepare and operate at all times according to a written operation and
maintenance plan for the general operation and maintenance of new or existing by-product
coke gven batteries. Each plan must address, at a minimum, the elements listed in paragraphs
{b){1} through (6} of this section.

(1) Frequency and method of recording ungerfiring gas parameters.

(2) Frequency and method of recarding battery operating temperature, including
measurement of individual flue and cross-wall temperatures,

{3} Procedures to prevent pushing an oven before it is fully coked.

{4) Procedures to prevent overcharging and undercharging of avens, including
measurement of coal moisture, coal bull density, and procedures for determining
volume of coal charged,

{5} Frequency and procedures for inspecting flues, burners, and nozzles.
{6} Schedule and procedures for the daily washing of bafffes.

§63.7335(b} “For each coke oven battery with a capture system or control device applied to pushing
emisslons, you must demonstrate continuous compliance with the operation and maintenance
requirements in §63.7300{c} by meeting the requirements of paragraphs (b){1) through {3} of this
section:

(1) Making monthly Inspections of capture systems accoarding to §63.7300(c)(1) and recording all
information needed to document conformance with these requirernents;

{2) Performing preventative maintenance for each control device according to §63.7300(c}{2)
and recording all information needed to document conformance with these requirements; and
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(3) Initiating and completing corrective action for a bag leak detection system alarm according
to §63.7300(¢)(3) and recording all infarmation needed to document conformance with these
requirements, This includes records of the times the bag leak detection system alarm sounds,
and for each valid alarm, the time you initiated corrective action, the corrective action{s] taken,
and the date on which corrective action is completed, ”

§63.7335(c} To demanstrate continuous compliance with the operation and maintenance requirements
for a baghouse applied to pushing emissions from a cake oven battery in §63.7331(a), you must inspect
and maintain each baghouse according to the requirements in 563.7331(z)(1) through (8} and reccrd al)
information needed to document conformance with these requirements, If you increase or decrease the
sensitivity of the bag leak detection systern beyond the limits specified in 863.7331(a)(6), vou must
include a copy of the required written certification by a responsibte official in the next semiannual
compliance report,

§63.7335(d) You must maintain a current copy of the eperation and maintenance plans required in
§63.7300(b) and {c) onsite and available for inspection upon request. You must keep the plans for the
life of the affected source or until the affected source is na tonger subject to the requirements of this
subpart.

3. DOORS, OFFTAKES and CHARGING OPERATIONS

When 40 CFR 63, Subpart L was promulgated, the facility efected to meet the stondards for compliance date
extension ot §63.304. including an earlier compliance dute of Navember 15, 1993 and o final compliance date for
the standards at §63. 302 of January 1, 2020 The applicable emission limits under both sections have been
identicol since January 1, 2010, To help distinguish which emission limits apply, it is imgpartant o note that
Bluestone is o by-product *furnnce” coke piont with “shart” botreries. Bluestone uses “seif-sealing” doors.

Comptionce with hoth the MACT and the local reguictions is determined based on inspections uccording to EPA
Method 303 (40 CFR 63, Appendix A) and the colculation procedures of §63.309. Ovens which are nat in service
are not counted toward the percentage of leaks from an emission pait,

a. DQORS
Title V Permit 4-07-0355-03

EU 008, EU 012 and EU 015, Condition 5, Parcent Leaking Doors Restriction (citing Subpart L and 6.9.6)

Subpart L emission limit: "3.3 percent leaking coke oven doors for each by-product coke oven battery .,
as determined by the procedures in §63.309(d}{1)” from §563.302(a)(3)(it) and 63.304{b){3){il).

§63.309(d){1): “Using the observations obtained from each performance test, ... The 30-run rolling
average of the percent leaking coke oven daars, topside port lids, and offtake systems on each coke
aven battery, using the equations in sections 4.5.3.2, 5.6.5.2, and 5.6.6.2 of Method 303 (or section
3.4.3.2 of Method 303A) in appendix A to this part;”

§63.309(c)(1}: “The certified observer shall conduct one run sach day to observe and record visible
emissions from each coke oven dopr (except for doars coverad by an alternative standard under
§63.305), topside port lid, and offtake system on each coke oven battery.”
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Compliance with the Subpart L iimit an leaking doors s based on @ 30-run averuge of daily obsarvations of the
doors on both sides of the hattery in which leaks are counted. Ovens which are nat in service gre nat cotinted
toward the doily percentage of leaking doors.

6.8.6(a) There shall be no visibie emissions, except non-smoking flame, from any opening on the coke
oven doors from more than fifteen parcent (15%]) of the coke aven daors on any battery at any time.

This timit is based on a single run-by-observing the doors on hoth sides of the battery in which leaks are counted.
Ovens which are not in service are not counted toward the percentage of leaking doors.

6.8.6(b) I a self-sealing door fails to seal during the coking cycle, it shall be adjusted, repaired or
replaced prior to a subsequent charge of that oven.

Self-explanatory. Bluestone uses “self-seciing” daors.

b. OFFTAKES
Title ¥ Permit 4-07-0355-03

EU 008, EU 012 and EU 015, Condition 7, Percent Leaking Offtake Systern Restriction (citing Subpart L and
£.9.5)

§63.301 "Offtake system means any individual oven apparatus that is stationary and provides a passage
for gases from an oven to a coke oven battery collecting main or to another oven, Offtake system
components include the standpipe and standpipe caps, goosenecks, stationary jumper pipes, mini-
standpipes, and standpipe and gooseneck connactions.”

Subpart L emissien limit: “2.5 percent leaking offtake systems, as detarmined by the procedures in
§63.309(d)}{1)" from 8863.302(a}{3)(iv) and 63.304{b})(2){iii).

§63.309(d}{1): “Using the observations obtained fram each performance test, ... The 30-run rolling
average of the percent leaking coke oven doors, topside port lids, and offtake systems on each coke
oven hattery, using the equations in sections 4.5.2,2, 5.6.5.2, and 5.6.6.2 of Method 303 {or section
3.4.3.2 of Method 3034} in appendix A to this part;”

§62.309(c){1): "The certified observer shall canduct one run =ach day to cbserve and record visible
emissions from each coke oven doar (except for doors covered by an alternative standard under
&§63.305), topside portiid, and offtake system on each coke oven battery.”

Complionce with the Sulbpart L limit on leaking offtekes /s brised on g 30-run vvernge of dally observations of the
offtakes on the bottery in which leaks ure counted. Ovens which are not in service are not counted toward the
daily percentoge of leaking offtakes.

6.9.5(b}- At na time shall there be leaks in more than ten percent (10%) of the offtake piping and no
more than five percent (5%) of the charging hole lids on any one battery.

These fimits are based on u single walk-over of the battery (o “run”) in which leaks pre counted. Ovens which are
not in service ore not counted fownrd the percentage of leaking offtakes.

t. CHARGING
Title V¥ Permit 4-07-0355-03
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EU 00Y, EU 012 and EU 015, Condition 8, Charging Visible Emissions Time Restriction (citing Subpart L)
EU 009, EU 012 and EU 015, Condition 9, Charging Visible Emissions Opacity Restriction (citing 6.9.3)

§63.301 "Charge or charging period means, for a by-product coke oven battary, the period of time that
commences when coal begins to flow into an oven through a topside port and ends when the last
charging port Is recapped.”

Subpart L emission Hmit: “12 secands of visible emissions per charge, as determined by the procedures
in §63.309{d){2)" from §§63.302(a)(3}{v) and 63.304{b)(2){iv).

§63.309(d)(2): “Using the observations obtalned from each performance test, .. For by-product coke
oven battery charging operations, the logarithmic 30-day relling average of the seconds of visible
emissions per charge for each battery, using the equatian in section 3.9 of Method 303 in appendix A to
this part;”

§63.309(c}{2}: “The certified observer also shall conduct five runs to observe and record the secands of
visible emissions per charge for five consecutive charges from each coke aven battery.”

Compliance with the Subpart L limit on wsible emissions from charging vperations is based on u logarithmic 30-
run overage of daily observations of 5 charges per battery in which leaks are timed using a stopwaich. Batteres
3 and 4 ore treated as one battery for the purposes of observing charging ernissions

6.9.3 Charging. There shall be ne visible emissions during the charging cycle from the charging holes or the
larry car of any battery with an opacity which is greater than twenty percent (20%) except for an average
period or periods not to exceed three (3) minutes of any consecutive sixty {60) minutes on batteries with
less than seventy (70) avens nor mare than four (4) minutes of any cansecutive sixty (60) minutes on
batteries with seventy (70) ovens ar more.

This limit on charging emissions addresses hourly emissions. Periods of visible emissions from chargnng are timed
using a stopwateh. The limit for alf batteries gt Bluestone is 3 minutes in any consecutive 60 minutes. Batteries 3
and 4 are treated as one battery for the purposes of abserving charging emissions.

d. Subpart L Work Practice Plan Implementation
Title V Permit 4-07-0355-03
EU 009, EU 012 and EU 015, Condition 12, Work Practice Standards (citing §63.306(a), §63.307 and §63.305{h))
EU 008, EU 012 and EU 015, Condition 13, Implementation of Work Practice Plans {citing §63.306(c)(1)(i))

Only the requirements ot issue are reprinted below.

§63.306(a). “...each owner or operator shall prepare and submit a written emission control work practice
plan for each coke oven battery. The plan shall be designed to achieve compliance with visible emission
limitatians for coke oven doors, topsida part lids, offtake systems, and charging operatians under this
subpart...”

Requirements for plan content are at §63.306(b) Generally, the plan must include provisions for aperator
troining und for equipment operations and inspections. The most recent version af the plan which has beer
provitded fo the Department was revised by Bluestone Coke in Seplember of 2019, This plan addresses both
Subport L and Subport CCOCC,
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§63.306(b): “Plan components. The owner or operator shall organize the wark practice pian to indicate
clearly which parts of the plan pertain to each emission point subject to visible emission standards under
this subpart. Each of the following provisions, at a minimum, shall be addressed in the plan:

{1} Aninitial and refresher training program for all coke plant operating personnel with responsibilities
that impact emisslons, Including contractors, in job requirements related to emission control and the
requirements of this subpart, including work practice requirements. Contractars with responsibilities
that impact emission contral may be trained by the owner ar operator or by qualified contractor
personnel; however, the owner or operator shall ensure that the contractor training program complies
with the requirements of this section. The training program in the plan must include:

(i} A Tist, by job title, of all personnel that are required to be trained and the emission point(s)
associated with each job title;

(if) An outline of the subjects to be cavered in the initial and refresher training for each group of
personnel;

(iii} A description of the training method(s) that will be used {e.g., lecture, video tape);

(iv} A statement of the duration of initial training and the duration and fraquency of refresher
training;

{v} A description of the methods to be used at the completion of initial or refresher training to
demonstrate and document successful completion of the initial and refresher training; and

{vi} A description of the procedure to be used to document performance of plan requirements
pertaining to daily operation of the coke oven battery and its emission control equipment,
including a copy of the farm to be used, if applicable, as required under the plan provisions
implementing paragragh (b){7) of this section.

(2} Procedures for controlling emissions from coke oven doors on by-product coke aven hatteries,
including:
(i} A program for the inspection, adjustment, repair, and replacement of coke oven doors and
jambs, and any other equipment for controlling emissions from coks oven doors, including a
defined frequency of inspections, the method to be used to evaluate conforrmance with
operating specifications for each type of equipment, and the method to ke used to audit the
effectiveness of the inspection and repair program for preventing exceedances;

(if) Procedures for identifying lesks that indicate a failure of the emissions control equipment to
function properly, including a cleariy defined chain of command for communicating information
on leaks and procedures for carrective actlon;

{iii) Pracedures for cleaning all sealing surfaces of each door and jamb, including identification of
the equipment that will be used and a specified schedule or frequency far the cleaning of
sealing surfaces;

{iv} For batteries equipped with self-sealing doors, procedures for use of supplemental
gasketing and luting materials, if the owner or operator elects to use such procedures as part
of the program to prevent exceadances;
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{vi} Procedures for maintaining an adequate inventory of the number of spare coke oven
doors and jambs located onsite; and

{vii) Procedures for monitoring and controlling collecting main back pressure, including
corrective action if pressure control problems occur,

(3) Procedures for contralling emissions from charging operations on by-product coke oven batteries,
inciuding:

(i} Procedures for equipment inspection, including the frequency of inspactions, and
replacement or repair of equipment for controlling emissions from cha rging, the method to be
used to evaluate conformance with operating specifications for each type of equipment, and
the method to be used to audit the effectiveness of the inspection and repair program for
preventing exceedances;

(ii} Procadures for ensuring that the larry car hoppers are filled properly with coal;

{i#i) Procedures for the alignment of tha larry car over the oven to be charged;

{iv} Procedures for filling the aven (e,g., procadures for staged or sequential charging);
(v} Procedures for ensuring that the coal is leveled properly in the aven; and

(vi) Procedures and schedules for inspection and cleaning of offtake systems {including
standpipes, standpipe caps, goosenecks, dampers, and mains), oven roofs, charging holes,
topside port lids, the steam supply system, and liquor sprays.

(4} Procedures for controlling emissions from topside port lids on by-product coke oven batteries,
including:

(i} Procedures for equipment inspection and replacement or repair of tapside port lids and
port |id mating and sealing surfaces, including the frequency of inspections, the methed to be
used to evaluate conformance with operating specifications for each type of equipment, and
the method to be used to audit tha effectiveness of the inspection and repair program for
preventing exceaedances; and

(if) Procedures for sealing topside port lids after charging, for identifying topside port lids that
leak, and procedures for resealing.

(5) Procedures for cantralling emissians from offtake system(s) on by-product coke oven batteries,
inciuding:

{e)..

(i} Procedures for equipment inspection and replacement or repair of offtake system
components, including the frequency of inspections, the method to be used to evaluate
confarmance with operating specifications for each type of equipment, and the method to be
used to audit the effectiveness of the inspection and repair program for preventing
exceedances;

(ii) Procedures for identifying offtake system companents that leak and procedures for sealing
leaks that are detected; and

(iii} Procedures for dampering off ovens prior to a push.
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{7) Procedures for maintaining, for each emission point subject to visible emission limitations under
this subpart, a daily record of the performance of plan requirements pertaining to the daily operation
of the coke oven battery and its emission control agquipment, including:

(i} Procedures for recording the parformance of such pian requirements; and
{ii} Procedures for certifying the accuracy of such records by the owner or operator,

{8} Any additional work practices or requirements specified by the Administrator according to paragraph
{d} of this section.

The Department fos reviewed the Work Practice and has found that it includes the required elements.

§63.306(c): “Implementation of work practice plans. On and after November 15, 1993, the owner or
operator of a coke oven battery shall implement the provisions of the coke oven emission control work
practice plan according to the following requirgments:

{1) The owner or operator of a coke oven battery subject to visible emission Himitations under this
subpart on and after November 15, 1993, shall:

(i) Implement the pravisions af the wark practice plan pertaining to a particular emission point
following the second independent exceedance of the visible emission limitation for the emission
point in any consecutive 6-month period, by no later than 3 days after receipt of written notification
of the second such exceedance from the certifiad observer, For the purpase of this paragraph
(e){1){1}, the second exceedance is “independent” if either of the following criteria is met;

{A) The second exceedance occurs 30 days or mare after the first exceedance;

{B} In the case of cake oven doors, topside port lids, and offtake systems, the 29-run average,
calculated by excluding the highest value in the 30-day period, exceeds the value of the
applicable emission limitation; or

(€} In the case of charging emissions, the 29-day logarithmic average, caiculated In accordance
with Method 303 in appendix A to this part by excluding the valid daily set of observations in the
30-day period that had the highest arithmetjc average, exceeds the value of the applicable
amission imitation.

(i) Continue to implement such plan provisions untit the visible emission limitation for the emission
point is achieved for 90 cansecutive days if work practice requirements are implemented pursuant
to paragraph {c)(1){i) of this section. After the visible emissian limitation for a particular emission
point s achieved for 90 consecutive days, any exceedances prior to the beginning of the 90 days are
not included in making a determination under paragraph {c}(1}(i} of this section.

Work proctice plan implementation is required to address frequent exceedances of Subpart L limits over gn ye
month period. The plain English explanation of “independent” exceedances: First, 2 or more exceedances of the
30-duay {regular or fogarithmic) average occureing 30 days or more apart {within o 6 month period) are
“independent” and implementation hos been triggered. Second, implementation may also be triggered as eorly
as the second exceedance if the exclusion af the highest single day inspeciion results within the 30-tay period
produces a 29-day {regulor or logarithmic) average that aiso exceeds the applicable emission limit, This second
circumstance s afso termed “independent.”
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§63.306(d){1): “The reviewing authority may request the owner or operator to review and revise as
naeded the work practice emission cantral plan for a particular emission paint if there are 2
exceedances of the applicable visible emission limitation in the 6-month period that starts 30 days after
the owner or operator is required to implement work practicas under paragraph {c} of this section. In
the case of a coke oven battery subject to visual emission limitations under thig subpart, the second
exceedance must be indepandent of the criteria in paragraph (cH{1)(i) of this section.”

The Department could require revision of the work proctice plon for the following points gccording to this
provision: Charging emizsions fram Botteries 3 and 2, charging emissians from Battery § {on June 22, 2020 or
tater), offtakes on Battery 3. offtakes on Battery 5 fondune 29, 2020 or later), and doors on Batteries 3, 4 andfor
5.

4. RECUIREMENTS EOR SPARE DOORS AND LIDS

This section discusses the work practice plan requirements for main taining spare doors and Hids in order to
properly maintain and repair ovens.

Title V Permit 4-07-0355-03

EU 008, EU 012 and EU 015, Condition 16, Oven Maintenance {citing 6.9.7}
6.9.7(a) All ovens shall be maintained in good condition to gromote complete coking of coal.
6.9.7(b) All coke aven cracks are to be sealed as soon as practicable after they are detected,

6.9.7(c) As directed by the Health Officer, reasonable records of the maintenance of oven doors, oven
burners, and oven interiors are to be made and retained for a reasonable time,

Self-explonatory. The Department witl point out thot taking an oven out of service until repairs are made is not o
vinlation af this provision,

EU 008, EU 012 and EU 015, Condition 17, Coke Cven Standards (incorporating 6.9.6)

6.9.6(d): “Every person operating coke ovens shall have a facility to maintain and repair coke oven
doaors, and shall maintain an inventory of one {1} coke oven doar per twelve {12} ovens aperated.”

Bluestone does have o door repoir facijity.
EU 003, EU 012 and EU 018, Condition 12, Wark Practice Standards (citing §63.306(a), §63.307 and §63.309(h))

Requirements for plan content are at §63.305, which was presented ahove. Orly the plan comporents that ore at
issue will be excerpted below:

§63.306(b){2): "Procedures for controlling emissions from coke oven doars on by-product coke oven
batteries, including: ... {vi) Procedures for maintaining an adeguate inventory of the number of spare coke
oven doors and jambs located ansite; and ...”

These procedures are included in the plan described above on puges 11 - 12, The doors on the “pusher side” of
the battery are different from the doors on the “coke side” of the battery becouse o “chuck door” is needed to
allow the leveling of coal that has been charged into the oven.

§63.311{f}{4): "If the owner or operator is required under §63.306(c} to implement the provisions of a
wark practice plan for a particular emissian paint, the following records regarding the implamentation
of plan requirements for that emission point during the implementation period; ... (iv) If the plan
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provisions for coke oven doors must be implementad, records of the inventory of doors and Jambs as
required under §63.306(b)(2}{vi); ."

Bluestone wos required to exomine aned recocd the quantity of spare doars and jambs within 10 days of
implementation of the work practice plon for dogrs

5. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Title V Permit 4-07-0355-03

The actual text of the permit conditions is presented below.

General Condition &, Maintenance of Equipment: Reporting (citing 1.12.1, 18.2.4 and 18.2.8{a)):

Maintenance: Reporting. In the case of shutdown of air pollution control equipment (which operates
pursuant to any permit issued by the Director} for necessary scheduled maintenance, the intent to shut
down such equipment shall be reported to the Director at least 24 hours prior to the planned shutdown,
unless such shutdown Is accompanied by the shutdown of the source which such equipment is intended to
control. Such prior notice shall include, but is not limited to the following:

A, ldentification of the specific facility to be taken out of service ag well as its location and permit
number;

B. The expected length of time that the air pollution control equipment will be out of service;

C. The nature and quantity of emissions of air contaminants likely to occur during the shutdown
period;

D. Measures such as the use of off-shift labor and equipment that will be taken to minimize the length

of the shutdown period; and
E. The reasons that it would be impossible or impractical to shut down the source operation during the

maintenance period.
General Condition 7, Malfunction: Reporting (citing 1.12.2, 18.2.4 anid 18.2.8(a))-

In the event that any emission source, air pollution control equipment, or related facitity fails or breaks
down in such a manner as to cause the emission of air contaminants in violation of these rules and
regulations, the person responsibile for such source, equipment, or facility shall notify the Health Officer
within 24 hours of such failure or breakdown and provide a statement giving alf pertinent facts,

including the estimated duration of the breakdown. The Health Officer shall be notified when the
condition causing the failure or breakdown has been corrected and such saurce, equipment, or facility is
again In operation,

General Condition 17, Deviations (citing 18.5.3(c)(2} and 40 CFR 63):

Deviations from permit requiremants shall be reparted within 2 working days of such deviations,
including those attributable to upset conditions, the probable cause of said deviations, and any
corrective actions or preventive measures that were taken.

Reporting requirements for Sulipart CCCCC and Subport L are included below for completeness.

General Condition 59, Deviations-Demanstrating Continuous Compliance (NESHAP Requirements) {citing 40
CFR 63, Subpart CCCCC, 63.7336 and 63.7341)
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EU 021, Condition 9, Subpart CCCCC — Fugitive Pushing Emissions: Deviations - Reporting Requirements
(incorparating §63.7291(a)(6){iii) and §63.7291{a)(7)(iv))

EU 021, Condition 6, Subpart CCCCC — Reporting Requirements (incorporating §63.7341)

Pertinently, Bluestone is requirad to report each instance in which the feshing emissions are not captured ond
controfied os required by Subpart CCCCT, The definition of deviation and the reporting requirements that apply
for the on-going foilure to use the capture and collection systemm are below for reference. These are in addition to
Title V reporting requirements,

§63.7352 Definitions ... Deviation means any instance in which an affected saurce subject to this
subpart, or an owner ar operator of such a source:

(1) Fails to meet any requirement or obligation established by this subpart including, but not
limited to, any emission limitation (including operating limits) or work practice standard;

(2} Fails to meet any term or condition that s adopted to implement an applicable requirement
in this subpart and that is includzd in the operating permit for any affected source required to
obtain such a permit; or

(3) Falls ta maet any emission limitation or work practice standard i this subpart during startup,
shutdown, or malfunction, regardless of whether ar nat such failure is permitted by this subpart.

Emission limitation means any emission limit, opacity limit, or operating imit

§63.7336(a): “Deviations. You must report each instance in which you did nat meet each emission
limitation in this subpart that applies to you. This includes periods of startup, shutdown, and
matfunction. You must also report each instance in which you did not meet each work practice standard
or operation and maintenance requirement in this subpart that #pplies to you. These instances are
deviations from the emission limitations (including operating limits), work practice standards, and
operation and maintenance requirements in this subpart. These deviations must be reparted according
to the reguirements in §63.7341."

§63.7341{c}(5}): “... If there were no deviations from the tontinuous compliance requirements in
§563.7323 through 63.7335 that apply to you (for all affected sources other than battery stacks), a
statement that thare were no daviations from the emission limitations, work practice standards, or
operation and maintenance requirements durlng the reporting period.”

§63.7341{c}(7): “For each deviation from an emission limitation in this subpart (including quench water
limits) and for each deviation from the requirements for work practice standards in this subpart that
occurs at an affected source where you are not using a continuous monitoring system {including a
COMS, CEMS, or CPMS) to comply with the emission limitations in this subpart, the compliance report
must contain the information in paragraphs (c)(4) and {7){i} and (i) of this section. This Includes periods
of startup, shutdown, and malfunction.

(i) The total operating time of each affected source during the reporting period.

(if) Information on the number, duration, and cause of deviations (inchuding unknown cause, If
applicable} as applicable and the corrective action taken.”
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§63.7341(c)(a): "If you had a startup, shutdown, or malfunction during the reporting period and you
took actions consistent with your startup, shutdown, and malfunction plan, the compliance repart must
include the information in §63.10(d)(5Hiy”

§63.7341(e): “Part 70 manitoring repart, If you have abtained a titls v operating permit for an affected
source pursuant ta 40 CFR part 70 or 40 CFR part 71, you must report all deviations as defined in this
subpart in the semiannual monitoring report required by 40 CFR 70.6{a}{3)(lii)(A) or 40 CFR
71.6(a)(3)iM){A). If you submit a compliarice report for an affactad source along with, or as part of, the
semiannual monitoring repart required by 40 CFR 70.6{a){3)(iii}{A) or 4G CFR 71.6{a}{3)iii})(A), and the
comphance report includes all the required information concerning deviatians from any emission
fimitation or work practice standard in this subpart, submission of the compliance report satisfles any
ohligation to report the same deviations in the semiannual maonitaring report. Howeaver, submission of
a compliance report does not otherwise affact any obligation you may have to report deviations from
permit requiremeants to your permitting authority.” femphosis odded)

EU 009, 012, 015, Condition 2, Subpart L of 40 CFR 63 {incorporating Subpart L)

§63.306{d){3): “If the certified observer calculates that a second exceedance (or, if applicable, a second
independent exceedance) has occurred, the certified observer shall notify the owner or operatar. No
later than 10 days after receipt of such a natification, the owner or operator shall notify the reviewing
authority of any finding of whether work practices are related to the cause or the solution of the
problem. The naotification is subject to review by the reviewing authority according to the provislons in
paragraph {d){&) of this section,”

§63.306{d}{B): “... The reviewing authority may also disapprove the finding that may be submitted
pursuant to paragraph (d}(3) of this section If the reviewing authority determines that a revised plan is
needed to prevent exceedances of the applicable visible emission limitations.”

Blugstone wus required to assess whether work practices are related to the cause or sodutian to the problemys)
causing plan implementation to be triggered within 10 days of being notified that impiementation has been
triggered. The Department is the reviewing authority becouse it has accepted delegation of 40 CFR 63, Subport L
from EPA in Chapter 14 of the flules and Regulatians.

EU 003, 012, 015, Condition 20, Semiannual Compliance Certification {incorporating §63.311)

§63.311{d)(3): “Semiannual compliance certification. The owner or operaior of a coke oven battery shall
Include the following information in the semiannyal compliance certification.... {3) Certification, signed
by the owner or operator, that work were implermented if applicable under §63.306."

The required notification was included in the second semi-annual certification repart for 2019 for doors on
Battery 4 ond churging on Betteries 3 and 4, Additiona) notifications for amission paints which have triggered
implementotion during Junuary to Jupe of 2020 must be included in the first semi-annual certification repoct for
2020 frlue huty 31, 2020), :
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ATTACHMENT 3

PERTINENT DATES (5 Tabies)
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Table 1 — SUBPART CCCCC Pushing Opacity Limitations — Instances in which MACT corrective actions were
triggered, July 1, 2019 to present (ovens currently in corrective actions are highlighted)

Oven # Date o"f"”Trigger" Reading in  Date Corrective Action Any Deviations (rereads
Excess of 30% Completed in excess of 30%)

123 January 16, 2020 January 27, 2020 None
134 . September 5, 2019 . September 24, 2019 None
139 January 27, 2020 February 8, 2020 __“None -
142 March 5, 2020 March 25, 2020 None
148 March 7, 2020 i Removed from service MNone
150 Sepiember 12, 2019 September 29—, _2019 None
156 February 29, 2020 Removed from servicem , Mone
151 August 28,2019 September 24, 2013 | Nane
157 September 30, 2015 October 25, 2019 Nane
157 November 28, 2019 January 1, 2020 None
161 Decernber 20, 2019 lanuary 29, 2020 Dje;::::jréiégig'
162 | August 25, 2019 September 5, 2019 None
162 i October 19, 2019 Remaved from semiéé None
163 August 24, 2019 September 3, 2019 None
172 * lanuary 26, 2020 February 17, 2020 None

1 March 15, 2020 April 2, 2020 None

1 June 11, 2020 6/27/2020 None ]
172 July 5, 2020 N/A b N/A ]
174 lanuary 13, 2020 lanuary 21, 2020 None T
174 February 7, 2020 Removed from service None
179 December 17, 2019 Remaved from service None
184 January 25, 2020 February 14, 2020 None
194 March 5, 2020 March 18, 2020 None a
154 March 26, 2020 April 5, 2020 7 None
200 September 16, 2014 October 10, 2019 None
200 March 13, 2020 February 28, 2020 © Neme
200 May 8, 2020 May 23,2020 None

01 September 9, 2019 October3, 2019 None
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! Oven # " Date of “Trigger” Readinﬁ‘ | DPate Corrective Action Any Deviatiansmﬁ:gréads
_ Excess of 30% Completed in excess of 30%)
201 July 4, 2020 1uly 6, 2020 None
202 Dacember 28, 2019;7 7 lanuary 1_5?}26— i Mona
202 May 20, 2020 May22,2020 | None N
203 I sowriserammal October11,2019 |  September 26, 2019
203 December 27, 2019 lanuary 15, 2020 | None
203 lanwvary 26, 2&20 ‘Februaryug, 2020 -:__ None
203 May 13, 2020 | June 18,2020 ':‘Aaa’; ];J 2322%
208 Febiruary 7, 2020 February 19, 2020 None
208 September 18, 2019 October 8, 2019 Mane
209 February 10, 2020  March 15, 2020 March 1, 2020
209 May 15,2020 — May 18, 2020 T NenE
s  May 1, 2020 B ]rh May21,2020 1 Mone B
216 March 28, 2020 April 10, 2020 None
216 May 13,2020 May 16,2020 None |
217 March 26, 2020 April 6, 2020 " Nome K
217  May7,2020 May 26, 2020 None
217 June 16, 2020 N/A N/A
218 September 19, 2919 October 14, 2019 Bl None N
226 May 14, 2020 N/A ﬁi‘; ‘;% 22%‘;%
229 February 23, 2020 March 15,2026 | None
229 May15,2020 June1,2020 | None
2329 June 3, 2020, | June 24, 2020 June 20, 2020
229 June 26, 2020 N/A N/A
230 September 26, 2019 October 7, 2019 Mone
230 May 27, 2020 N/A lune 14, 2020
232 March 2, 2020 March 16, 2020 Nane
a2 May 20, 2020 O May23,2000 | Neme
233 September 16, 2019 Ortober 2, 2019 None
233 lanuary 26, 2020 February 14,2020 h None
133 March28,2020 | Aprils, 2020 None
33 April27,2000 May 10, 2020 © Nome
733 June 21, 2020 N/A B N/A
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Oven # Date of “Trigger” Reading In Date Corrective Action Any Deviations [rereads
Excess of 20% Completed in excess of 30%)
234 September 25, 2018 October 15, 2019 None
234 February 15, 2020 March 24, 2020 March 12, 2020
235 February 1, 2020 February 16, 2020 Mone
235 March 2, 2020 April 1, 2020 MNone
235 ppril21,2020 | lune 5, 2020 " May 20, 2020
235 June 29, 2020 N/A July 3, 2020
236 December 14, 2019 lanuary 4, 2020 Nane

Table 2 ~ Local Regulations — Instances where 2 or more ovens with peak emissions greater than 40% were

pushed within a 60-minute period, from luly 1, 2018 to present (format is DATE (Oven # @ Military Time)

Count Battery 3 Battery 4 Battery 5
i 9/30/2019 9135@10:45, 9/24/2019 (167@11:24, B/17/2019 {184@11:30,
145@10:56) i 177@11:36)) L 194@11:49)
3 12/3/2018 (131@9:36, 10/4/2019 (163 14:45, 9/7/20119 {203@9:57,
141@10:18) 180@15:14) 233@10:06)
3 172772020 (135@11:36, 9/11/2019 (203@10:35,
139@11:48) 233@1047)
a 2/1/2020 (140@7:20, 12/28/2019 (235@10:48,
137@8:20)  202@10:59)
" 2/12/2020 (144@4:13, 1/5/2020 (235@6:45,
121@9:13) ) 202@6:55)
6 3/12/2020 {121@12:36, 1/6/2020 (205@9:48,
131@13:02) 195@10:23)
7 1/7/2020{204@14:14,
215@14:25,195@14:38)
q 1/26/2020 {203@9:51,
_____ | 233@10:05, 200@10:18)
" F 1/31/2020 (229@7:53,
216@8:13)
10 2/172020 (225@7:38,
! 235@7:58)
11 7/2/2020 (194@12:35,
204@12:45) |
12 2/10/2020 (195@4:55,
- 209@9:24)
- 2/11/2020 (215@9:27,
225@10:27)
- i 2/18/2020 (208@8:07,
195@8:54)
15 2/23/2020 (226@12:22,
236@12:37))
16 3/2/2020 {235@8:54,
232@9:30)
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Caunt Battery 3 Battery 4 _ Battery5s ‘
17 3/4£2020 (194@6°05,
B 204@6:17)
18 3/10/2020 (208@7:46,
218@8:02, 195@8:35)
19 3/12/2030 (184@8:21,
217@8:34)
20 3/13/2020 (233@8:02,
________ 7 2008:28)
21 3/14/2020 (216@8:01,
2261@8:17)
29 3/21/2020{233@7-37,
200@8:42}
I 3 3/28/2020 |226@7:57,
a 203@8:26, 233@8:45)
I 24 4/24/2020(194@7:46,
217@8:33)
55 5/1/2020 {215@7:55,
225@8:46)
26 5/13/2020 (2269:45,
203@9:59)
- 5/18/2020 (202@6:09,
232@6:30)
28 5/20/2020 (202@10:02,
235@10:19, 232@10:45)
29 5/21/2020 (215@5:10,
225@6:29)
30 6/5/2020 (235@5:23,
202@6:07, 232@6:20)
31 6/7/2020 (205@6:16,
215@6:28)
39 6/19/2020 (203@6:09,
233@6:20)
33 6/20/2020 (216@5:37,
226@5:51, 229@6.01)
34 6/21/2020 (203@9:22,
233@9:35)
3¢ 6/26/2020 (215@5:56,
225@6:02, 235@6:22)




Attachments to Letter of Vielation, NOY # 3203

Biuestone Coke

TABLE 3 ~ Exceedances of Subpart L and Local Limitations on Leaking Doors
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563.304(b) Doors »3.3% (30-
day ave)

Regulation Battery 3 Battery 4 Battery S
1/3-4/2020 1/20-22/2019 3/17/2020-3/26/2020
1/7/2020 2/8-12/2019 3/28/2020
1/17-21/2020 2/22/2019 4/23/2020-present
1/23-24/2020 2/24 - 26/2019 52
1/27/2020 2/28/2018

2/8/2020 - 2/15/2020

11/17-21/2019

§63.306(c)(1)(i)(A) Doars
>3.3% {2nd exceedance more
than 30 days but less than 6
months from first}

§63,306{c{1{1}(B} Doors
>3.3% (29/30-day ava
excluding highest)

2/19/2020-present

12/22-27/2019

12/30/2019

1/1/2020

1/3/2020

| 1/9-10/2020

1/18/2020 *Work
Practice Plan triggered

1/13/2020

4/17/2020

A4/25/2020-present

12/22/2019 *Work

Practice Plan trigaered |

271272019 *Work
Practice Plan triggered

3/47/2020 *Work
Practice Plan triggered

§63.306(d) revision may be
required if 2 "independent®
exceetlances occur more
than 30 days after
implementation is triggered

allowed February 22,
2020 or fater

allowed April 25, 2020
or later

allowed April 24, 2020
or later

£.9.6(a} Doors »15%

4/19/2020

4/28/2020

5/14/2020

6/7/2020

6/9/2020

6/10/2020

6/13/2020

6/23/2020

6/24/2020

7/9/2020
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TABLE 4 — Exceedances of Subpart L and Local Limitations on Leaking Offtakes
Regulation Battery 3 Battery 4 Battery 5

§63.304(b) Offtakes >2.5%
{30-day ave)

4/19/2020 - present 1/7/2020 - 1/29/2019 | 5/21/2020-5/29/2020

§63.306(c)(1)(i}{A} Offtakes
>2.5% (2nd exceedance more
than 30 days but less than 6
manths from first)

§63.308(c)(1)(i)(B) Offtakes
>2.5% (29/30-day ave
excluding highest)

| 2/1/2020-2/5/2020
6/20/2020 - present

4/20/2020 *wWork 5/29/2020 *Work

Practice Plan triggered | Practice Plan Triggered
h O3 %;’%};,_._ Stf' "', X ’?'}“'_ IR et

§63.306(d) revision may be
reguired if 2 "indepandent”
exceadances pccur more

allowed May 25, 2020 | the 30 day mark is July | exceedances have not

6.9.5(b} Offtakes >10%

than 30 days after or later 1s, 2020 been "independent”
implementation is triggered
2/8/2020 3/9/2019 6/11/2020
3/28/2020 11/17/2019 6/12/2020

4/1/2020 12/26/2019 Ak fitend]
4/9/2020 12/30/2019 i :
4/17/2020- 12/31/2018
4/18/2020 1/7/2020
4/15/2020 1/26/2020
4{20/2020 3/9/2020
4/22/2020 3/19/2020
5/2/2020 6/1/2020
5/7/2020 6/14/2020
5/8/2020 6/16/2020
5/11/2020 6/17/2020
5/12/2020 6/20/2020
5/13/2020 g

5/17/2020

5/23/2020

5/25/2020

5/28/2020

5/30/2020

5/31/2020

6/5/2020

6/7/2020

6/11/2020
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Regulation

Battery 3

6/12/2020

6/13/2020

6/14/2020

6/17/2620

5/18/2020

6/19/2020

6/20/2020

6/21/2020

6/22/2020

6/24/2020

6/25/2020

6/26/2020

7/2/2020

7/5/2020

7/7/2020

7/8/2020

7/10/2020

7/11/2020

Battery 4

Battery 5
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TABLE 5 - Exceedances of Subpart L Limitations on Visible Charging Emissions
Batteries3 8. 4 Battery 5
8/22/2019 1/3/2020
11/13/2019 1/9/2020

§63.304{b} Charging 12 sac
{30-day log ave)

11/15-28/2019

5/22/2020-5/31/2020

12/28/2019-1/15/2020

6/4/2020-PRESENT

2/12/2020-3/2/2020

3/4/2020

3/6/2020-3/10/2020

3/15/2020-4/22/2020

5/28/2020-present

§63.306(c){1}i)}{A) Charging
»12 sec {2nd exceedance
more than 30 days but less
than 6 months fram first)

11/13/2019 *Work Practice Plan triggered

542242020 *Work
Practice Pian triggered

§63.306{c}{1}(}}{C) Charging
>12 sec {29/30-day log ave
excluding highest)

§63.306(d} revision may be
raquired it 2 exceedances
occur more than 30 days

after implermentation (s
triggered

allowad December 29, 2019 or [ater

allowed May 23, 2020
or later
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JEFFERSON COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Environmental Health Services
Air and Radiation Protection Division
P.0O. Box 2648, Birmingham, AL 35202 (205} 930-1239

inspection #

62555

Source Inspection Report

Company Name Bluestone Coke

Source Battery Operations Permit# 4-07-0355-03

Person Contacted Charles Jones Time 11:00 AM Date 6/15/2021
Purpose Compliance Motice # N/A
Reguiations Violated N/A

Inspection Code 54 Municipal Code Time Spent 5.5 hours
Inspector(s) Kay Parker

Results and Recommendations:
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JEFFERSON COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

1400 6th Avenue Sauth | Birmingharn, AL 35233 (205) 9339110 | www.jcdh.org
.S;al:ufng jgﬁ%uorz Counfy Sinee 1917

Environmental Health Services
Jonathan Sianion, P.E., Direcior

August 6, 2021

M. Charies Jones
Environmental/Safety Coordinator
Bluestone Coke

3500 35" Avenue North
Birmingham, Alabama 35207

Dear Mr. Jones:

In keeping with our policy of conducting comprehensive inspections of stationary air
emission sources in Jefferson County, an unannaunced plant inspection and review of
records was conducted at your facility on J uly 23, 2021. Upon review of these records,
three areas of non-compliance with Operating Permit No. 4-07-0355-03 were identified,
A copy of the inspection report, prepared by Ms. Kay Parker, is submitted for your
records.

We appreciate your assistance with the air pollution control progeam for Jefferson County
and your cooperation with us in conducting these inspections. In accordance with EPA’s
audit policy, formally titled “Incentives for Self-Policing: Discovery, Disclosure,
Correction and Prevention of Violations,” that encourages volantary self-reporting of
facility violations, the Department recommends that you to visit the following website:
hﬂg}:f'/www.epa.eovicompEianceiinceutiveis_{aud’[ting/wditgolicg.html. If you have any
questions regarding the report or our Rules and Regulations, please contact Kay Parker,
the engineer assigned to your facility, at 930-1560.

Sincerely,

&m-’/’ém«wg—
ason Howanilz, M.S., P.E,
Senior Air Pollution Control Engineer
Air & Radiation Protection Division
JH/kp




JEFFERSON COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIEALTH
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES
AIR POLLUTION CONTROL PROGRAM

FY¥Y2021 FULL COMPLIANCE EVALUATION

BLUESTONE COKFE

August 3, 2021
Date & Time of  July 23, 2021, at $:00 a.m.
Inspection:

In Axtendance: Mr. Charles jones, Courdinator, Environmental/Safety Bluestone Coke
Mr. Jason Howanitz, Senior APC Engineer, JCDH
Ms. Kay Parker, APC Engineer, JCDH

Street Address: 3500 35" Avenue North
Birmingham, AL 35207-2918

Complianee Status

For fiscal year 2021, the compliance of Bluestene Coke. LLC (Bluestone ) with the
conditions of Major Source Operating Permit 4-07-0333-03 has been deficient in certain
areas to be described. Certain violations are persistent and cannot be remedied without
significant capital investment.

Process Deseription/ Overview

Bluestone produces coke by the destructive distiltation of coal in by-product recovery
coke ovens (SIC 3112), Prepared coal is heated in an oxygen-free atmosphere (“coked™)
uatil most volatile components in the coal are removed. The material remaining is a
carbon mass called coke, which is pushed from the ovens, cooled and prepared for sule,
During the coking process, the volatile products from coal and coal tar derivatives are
collected and separated in the by-products plant, Cleaned coke oven gas (COG) is fired
under the ovens to heat coal and may also be fired in the boilers which produce steam
used in the production processes and for generation of electricity. Nawral gas is
combusted as needed to maintain the proper operating level. Light oil, tar and ammonium
sulfate are the byproducts which are sold. The process operates continually, although
individual ovens and certain equipment and components can be laken offline for service,
The facility is an actual major source of NOx, PM, CO and S0, and a potential major
source of VOC and HAPs,

Process water and storm water runoff is treated at the biological reatment facility. Wet
suppression is used to control fugitive dust lrom coal and coke storage, handling and
processing. A wheel wash is operated to reduce the amount of dust carried frony the
facility on the wheels of heavy trucks. There are 7 emergency reciprociting internal
combustion engines (RICE).
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Changes Since Last Full Compliance Evalustion

The most recent previous full compliance evaluation for Maujor Source Operating Permit
4-07-0335-03 was performed by JCDH on September 30, 2020, The plant has continued
to deteriorate since the last full compliance evaluation. Coke production is much lower
than full production capacity due. uf least in part, to the number of operahle ovens.

The following table summarizes the quantity of ovens in operation during annual
inspections at the plant over the past 2 years:

Date of Inspection Batiery 3 Battery 4 Bartery 5
August 22,2019 I8/30 20/30 35/60 )
September 30, 2020 8/30 9/30 23/30
July 23, 2021 Shutdown in June 2021 5/30 10/60 |

Of Lhe 15 ovens in operation on the morning of July 23, 2021, 8 ovens were in “MACT
Corrective Actions” for exceeding the Subpart CCCCC pushing opucity limit after the
daily observations performed by Direct Environmental Services (DES). Several of these
ovens have offtakes and/or doors that need repair or replacement as well. During the last
2 months, the number of ovens pushed and charged each day has been so low that DES
often cannot observe the required number of ovens each day, particularly when ovens in
MACT corrective actions are excluded from re-reading.

The reduction in operuble ovens results in a reduction in COG generated, which has
several consequences. The byproducts operations have been scaled back. with the
electrostatic precipitators (Cottrell units) and the light oil process curtailed. The less clean
COG causes the need for extra maintenance, Bluestone must supplement COG with
natural gas in order to sustain battery operations. COG is no longer supplied to the boilers
because of an equipment breakdown, although Bluestone is not prohibited from making
the repairs needed to combust COG in the boilers again in the future.

Notice of Violation (NOV) 3203 for Batiery Operations and Current Compliance

The Depariment issued NOV 3203 to Bluestone on J uly 15. 2020 for battery operations
from January 1, 2020 to the date in NOVY issuance, including (briefly):

* Failuge to maimtain and operate the pushing emissions capture and control system
at all times as required by 40 CFR 63, Subpart CCCCC:;

¢ Numerous instances when more than one oven with peak pushing emissions
greater than 40% (an indication of incomplete coking) were pushed during one
hour in violatian of Section 6,9.4 of the Rules and Regulations;

» Failure to meet the emissions limitations of 40 CFR 63, Subpart L for charging,
leaking doors and leaking offiakes despite implementing the Work Practice Plan
for these emissions points;

*  Failure to maintain the inventory of spare daors required by Paragraph 6.9.6(d) of
the Rules and Regulations: and

* Failure to report the emissions resulting [rom the pushing of uncontrolled ovens.
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Bluestone restored the capture and control systern to operation by September 30, 2020.
Bluestone hus refruined from pushing multiple ovens with emissions greater thun 40%
within un hour except for 5 documented instances, Incomplete coking does continue 1o be
a problen, as evidenced by the number of ovens in MACT corrective actions.

Department review of the daily Method 303 observations shows

i failure to improve

compliaace with standards for doors, offtakes, and charging emissions. In the
Department’s engineering judgment, the failure to restore complianee is due to failure (o
repair the battery infrastructure. The tables below summarizes the duration and
magnitude of noncompliance. Note that Batteries 3 and 4 were treated as one battery for
the chservation of charging and pushing emissions prior to the shutdown of Battery 3.

Trigger Dute of Work Practice Plan

DO(')}F/?{“B%IE;QT 2 Battery 3 Battery 4 Battery 5
Trigger Date of Work December 22,
Practice Plan January 18, 2020 2019 & April | March I8, 2020
Implementation N 25, 2020
30-day Average of Door 9.92% = —
Leaks, Limit is 3.3% (as of June 22, 2021) Lt 2R
Consecutive Days Out of 131 93 456
Compliance with Standard | {as of June 22, 202 1) -
# of Exceedances of 25
6.9.6(a) after NOV sl s, BT 20 &
(15% sinele run) \asgilune2s. 202y | B
Offm;};;;g; e Battery 3 Battery 4 Battery 5
Trigger Date(s) of Work _—
Practice Plan April 20,2020 | June 6, 2020 | May 20,2020 &
_ o February 28, 2021
Implementation :
30-day Average of Offtake 2.83%
=] = .
Leaks, Limit is 2.5% (as of June 22, 2021]) 9.54% 3.66%
Consecutive Days Qut of (43 61 58
Compliance with Standard | (as of June 22, 2021) ]
# of Exceedances of 96
6.9.5(b) after NOV ',),,, o 83 I8
(10% sinale run) (as of June 22, 2021)
Charging as of 7/23/2021 Battettes 3 & 4 Battery 5

November 13, 2019

ay 22,2
Implementation HPﬁI:Ly 22, 2020
i ir f ‘1 ‘- . . : 2
30-day Log Average of Charges, Limit is 12.0 (658 SO
seconds N
Consecutive Days Ount o.f Compliance with . -
_ Standard )
# of Charges Read in last 30 days (145 required 19 iy

for a valid compliance determination)




Bluestone Coke Page 4
2021 Full Compliance Evaluation Augusl §, 2021

The number of charges read for euch 30-day period ending on the date of the reading has
been less thun 145 since May 27, 2021 for Battery 4. With so few ovens, 24- 1o 28-hour
coking times, and equipment breakdowans, some days there are not 5 charges to read.
Door and offtake leak rates have dropped below the stundards for imervals, but only
doors on Battery 4 and offiakes on Battery 5 were in compliunce for long enough to get
out of work practice plan implementation for a short lime before relapsing. Tracking of
door and offtake leaks using the daily observations performed by DES clearly indicates
that certain doors (the coke-side doar for oven 226 and the push-side door for oven 171)
and offtakes {oven 172) have leaked for 16 or more days out of the 30-day period ending
on July 23, 2021.

Additionally, the Department has observed odor, flame and visible emissions from doors
in the course of investigating compluints from the community. On April 1, 2021, smoking
Mlames and odor were observed from the push-side doors of adjacent ovens 200-201-202.
Although material was applied to seal the gaps before the inspector left the facility, these
ovens have since been removed fram service, On Jul ¥ 23, 2021, the Department
phatographed smoking flames at the tops of the push-side doors of adjacent ovens 170-
E71-172 and coke-side doors 226, and 229-230. These ovens appear 1o have been
damaged by sustained heat, possibly missing refractory and/or portions of the door
frames. Other ovens cannot be used because of bracing installed across the doors to
stabilize the battery structure,

The door shop had 8 doors to be repaired duting the July 23, 2021 inspection, bul none
appeared to be ready to be used. At least one of the 3 “spare” doaors in the rack at the end
of Battery 5 was broken (the upper latch was missing). Although Section 6.9.6 of the
Rules and Regulations only requires 2 doors for [5 operating ovens, it appeared doubtful
that even one door was ready to use at that time.

On July 16, 2021, the Depariment photographed (from off-site) the pushing of oven 208,
which had peak opacity of 100%, which continued while the hot car travelled 1o the
quench tower and through the subsequent quench. Oven 208 had been identified for
MACT corrective actions the previous day, Within the 30-day period ending on July 23,
2021, Bluestone had the following deviations:

* Oven 161 — while in MACT corrective actions, the daily MACT opacity reading
exceeded 30% on July 8, 2021 and July 9, 2021

*  Oven 208 — while in MACT corrective actions, the daily MACT opacity reading
exceeded 30% on July 16, 2021

* Oven 214 — while in MACT corrective actions, the claily MACT opacity reading
exceeded 30% on July 18, 2021

Additionally, the following ovens completed MACT corrective actions with 2 successfui
re-reads. and then exceeded 30% again the very next day (170, 171, 184) or within 2 or 3
days (184, again, and 230). Oven 161 also had peak pushing opacity exceeding 40% for
more than 2 consecutive pushes on June 26, 27 & 28, 2021 in violations of Section 6.9.4
of the Rules and Regulations. It is likely there would have been more instances where this
violation was observed if ovens in MACT corrective actions were read when they were
pushed before repairs were deemed complete,
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On July 23, 2021, the Department photographed a recent repair tocated on the wp of
Battery 5, where concrete was poured to seal cracks, then allowed o expand and contract
until the repair cracked ilself.

Over a year alter the NOV, Bluestone is still not meeting the requirements of Section
6.9.7 of the Rules and Regulations to maintain the ovens in goad condition to promote
complete coking of coal and to seal cracks as soon as practicable after they are detected.

Compliatnce With Other Reguirements for Battery Operations

The baghouse passed its most recent stack test on December 15, 16 and 17, 2020, Tested
emissions were 0.013 Ib/ton of coke pushed, which complies with the emissions limit of
(.02 Ib/ton of coke pushed. COMS datu indicates that the opacity of the underfire stacks
has not exceeded the Subpast CCCCC limit during 2021 so far. Review of records of test
results for weekly and monthly quench water sampling indicates that quench water
quality is in compliance with applicable regulations.

During recent field patrol events conducted to investigate complaints, the Department has
observed little or no opacity from the underfire stacks, even during reverses. However,
visibie emissions from the battery, including but not limited to open tlues, leaking doors
in need of repair, and damaged or missing refractory brick, have been observed on 4
number of occasions. These emissions did not appear to he crossing property lines.

The bypass/bleeder stacks for each baltery are required by 40 CR 63, Subpart L and Part
8.27 of the Rules and Regulations. There have been 0 reported instances in which COG
was vented to any of these stacks during calendar year 202 | to date.

Coke Oven Gas (COG) and By-Products Discharge Sampling and Analysis

Bluestone is required to sample the COG each month and have it analyzed for HaS using
the Tutwiler Method. Bluestone collects 2 samples per month, one at the boilers and one
at the batteries. For the boilers, compliance with the $SO» emissions limitations is also
demonstrated at Boiler 4 by a CEMS, The Department has reviewed the lab results for
January through June of 2021 and compared the H>S content to years when production
conditions were higher and the batteries were in compliance with the regulations, The
historical average concentration of COG fueling the batteries (from 2007-2018) was
calculated at 190 gr HaS/100 CF of COG. The average concentration of the fuel mixture
combusted at the batteries from July-December 2020 was 67 gt H25/100 CF, and the
average from Janvary-July 2021 was 0.6 gr H28/100 CF. Bluestone is using much more
natural gas as compared to COG to produce steam and coke in comparison to previous
years, resulting in lower SO» emissions. It is improbable that the SOz emissions limits
could be exceeded under current operating conditions.

Bluestone samples the ammoaia still once per month for determination of the Total
Annual Benzene Quantity (TAB) for compliance with 40 CFR 61, Subpart FF. Sample
results for calendar year 2020 are available only for samples collecled beginning in July
of 2020 because the laboratory which analyzed the earlier samples will not release the
results until they are paid for the analyses. Bluestone caleulated the 2020 TAB to he
|.OE-02 MG/Y'r, as reported in the annual production report. The Department has
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reviewed the lab results for January through June of 2021, The av crage benzene
concentration for the year (so far) is 7.7 ug/l.. The average benzene concentration for
samples analyzed from 2020 was 13,1 ug/L. The amount of waste produced is lower
because production is lower. There is no reason Lo believe that the TAB will increase to
over | MG/year under current operating conditions.

Boilers

Historically, all 3 permitted boilers have met the emissions limitations of the Rules and
Regulations by combusting only coke oven gas and natural gas, however, for now they
can combust only natural gas. Monthly Method 9 visible emissions observations are
performed for | hour an each boiler which is in operation at the time. Boiler 4 is also
subject o 40 CFR 60, Subpart Db, CEMS monitor emissions of NOx. €O and SO> and 4
COMS monitors opacity at Boiler 4 for Subpart Db compliance. According (o the
semiannual report for the first half of 2021, the CEMS were out of control for part of
Jonvary 2021, and the CEMS suffered a mechanical failure on April 20.Repairs were not
complete as of the date the semi-annual report was submilted ( Tuly 30, 2021),

Since mid-June, Bluestone has been renting a package boiler to provide steam for plant
operations while the permanent boilers are being inspected. [f the unit remains onsite for
more than 180 days, it will be subject to 40 CFR 60, Subpart De, “Standards of
Performance for Small Industrial-Commercial-Institutiona! Steam Generating Units.”
However, the NSPS has no emission limits For units that combust only natural gas.

By-Products Plant Leak Detection and Report (LDAR)

Direct Environmental Services (DES) conducts Bluestone s monitoring program for the
byproducts equipment, including but not necessarily limited to valves, connectors, pumps
and pressure relief devices, for compliance with the Rules and Regulations and with 40
CFR 61, Subparts L and V using 4 combination of visual inspections and instrumental
monitoring on a frequency tailored to the function and location of equipment. These
regulations also require prompt repair of leaks. Delay of repair is not considered a
violation under specified circumstances, but these instances must be reported as
deviations. The LDAR inspections and monitoring are being performed at least as
frequently as the applicable local and federal regulations require.

The Department conducted a review of LDAR records for 2021 through June. Daily
instrument calibration records are included in the files. Separate monthly logs for leaks,
corrective actions, and follow-up monitoring to confirm repairs were reviewed. The
records indicate that 7 pieces of equipment were tagged (identified as leaking), fixed, und
monitored after | and 2 months to confirm the repair, One tagged item failed a repeat
inspection, and required additional corrective action and conficmation monitoring.
Another tagged item has been awaiting parts since May (expected mid-August 202 1).
Some equipment on the [ists were not monitored for one or both guarters because they
were out of service (components associated with T-27 Middle Decanter, T-41 % CGA, T-
40 % CGA., T-58 Water Settling Tank, and Exhauster #1). Equipment that is designated
as unsafe or difficult to monitor is monitored in the fourth quarter of each calendar year,
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Plant-Wide Fugitive Dust

During recent field patrols and on-site inspections, no fugitive dust was abserved from
the plant roads and grounds. There has been no indicution that the wheel wash is not
opersting or has been ineffective to prevent trucks from tracking soil from the plant.

Review of Reports and Submissions to JCDH

Bluestone submitted its most recent Title V annual compliance certification on December
19, 2020. The company supplied stalus is in compliance, however they report intermittent
compliance rather than continuous compliance for some requirements. In most cases
“intermittent compliance” is a fair characterization, in that compliant actions and
conditions exceeded deficiencies. Bluestone inconsistently claims continuous compliance
but also intermittent compliance with testing requirements when the analytical results are
not available although samples were collected. There is other credible evidence that no
emission limits were exceeded. Regarding pages 37 and 42 of the main document, the
Department believes it is a fine distinction to claim any compliance with Section 6.9.7 of
the Rules und Regnlations, but recognizes that admitting noncompliance may be
undesiruble, particularly in light of the pending NOV.

A total of 81 distinct deviations were reported for the period from November 21, 2019
through November 20, 2020 with regard to repeated leaks detected to components subject
to LDAR, excess emissions from emergency bleeder flares, one instance in which the
local charging emissions limitation was exceeded, triggering of Subpart L work praciice
plan implernentation for charging, offiakes and doars, missing calibration data from the
underfire stack COMS, and instances in which an oven in MACT corrective actions
failed to demonstrate restored compliance with the opacity standard. Title V semiannual
monitoring reports, quarterly reports for local LDAR requirements and underfire COMS
required by NESHAP, and the annual production data and emissions reporl have been
submitted in a timely manner. Title V emissions fees have been paid.

Recommendations

The Department restates the following from last yeur's full compliance evaluation:
“Bluestone must correct the all the deficiencies in battery operations and maintenance
identified in NOV 3203 as soon as possible.” Additionally, the Department encourages
Bluestone to resume the voluntury monthly inspection interval for componeats in VOO
and/or benzene service and to observe ovens in MACT corrective uctions when they are
pushed during the daily observation period even if corrective actions are incomplete.

Prepared by:

SR

Kay Parker, 1.D.
Air Pollution Control Engineer
Air & Radiation Protection Division




